

### CITY OF NEWARK DELAWARE

August 21, 2023

**TO:** Honorable Mayor and Council

**FROM:** Mark A. Farrall, Chief of Police *MAF* 

Jeff Martindale, Chief Procurement & Projects Officer  $\mathcal{CT}$  For JM

David Del Grande, Finance Director  $\mathcal{D}$ 

VIA: Tom Coleman, City Manager

**SUBJECT:** Recommendation to Award Contract 23-11, Police Vehicle Equipment

Procurement and Upfitting

#### **PURPOSE**

The purpose of this contract is to secure a vendor for the procurement of new equipment, removal of old equipment, and installation of equipment in Newark Police Department (NPD) vehicles. The contract requires that the vendor provide the specified equipment identified in bid appendices (A-D) and complete installation in a specified time frame. The contract terms are set for a period of two years.

At least fifteen (15) police vehicles will be included with this contract, with pricing provided for any additional upfitting needs that are required over the course of the contract term. The fifteen (15) minimum vehicles associated with this contract are all 2023 Dodge Durango's Pursuit AWD. Specifically, twelve (12) of the vehicles will be fully marked per Appendix A. The remaining three (3) vehicles will be Administrative per Appendix C. Cradlepoints and vehicle radios have already been purchased or will be re-purposed from existing vehicles.

#### **BID/PROPOSAL REVIEW PROCESS**

Contract No. 23-11 was advertised in The News Journal and posted on the City's website ahead of the contract bid opening. Copies of the bid documents were also emailed to four (4) prospective bidders on Friday, July 7, 2023. On Tuesday, August 8, 2023, two (2) sealed bids were received from Transdev Services, Inc. of Conshohocken, PA and Elite Vehicle Solutions of Lakewood, NJ. These bids were publicly opened in the City of Newark Council Chambers. The bid details are as follows:

Vehicle Type	Total Price	Turnaround Time
Marked Patrol	\$19,252.32	3 Days
Unmarked	\$18,670.27	3 Days
Admin	\$8,499.81	2 Days
К9	\$21,079.20	4 Days
Marked Patrol	\$17,519.78	7 business days
Unmarked	\$17,213.19	7 business days
Admin	\$6,994.06	3 business days
К9	\$18,503.50	8 business days
	Marked Patrol Unmarked Admin K9  Marked Patrol Unmarked Admin	Marked Patrol \$19,252.32 Unmarked \$18,670.27 Admin \$8,499.81 K9 \$21,079.20  Marked Patrol \$17,519.78 Unmarked \$17,213.19 Admin \$6,994.06

Bidder	Upfit Removal (Hourly Rate)	Install/Repair Outside of Warranty (Hourly Rate)
Elite Vehicle Solutions	\$95.00	\$95.00
Transdev Services Inc.	\$95.00	\$95.00

Transdev Services (formerly known as First Mobile Technologies) currently serves as the upfitting vendor for the Wilmington Police Department, Milford Police Department and Lewes Police Department in Delaware. From 2018-2021 NPD utilized Transdev to procure and install equipment on a variety of police vehicles. NPD is confident that Transdev can acquire the equipment specified in the appendices and complete the work in accordance with the noted timetable.

Based on the rates and prices provided through this bid by Transdev Services, Inc., the initial procurement and upfitting costs for the fifteen (15) vehicles noted above will be \$248,739.00.

#### **FUNDING**

Upfitting costs in the amount of \$248,739 for these vehicles have been previously approved by City Council in the 2023-2027 Capital Improvement Program (project CEQSF).

### **RELATED DOCUMENTS (ATTACHED)**

- Elite Vehicle Solutions Contract No. 23-11 Response
- Transdev Services, Inc. Contract No. 23-11 Response

### **RECOMMENDED MOTION**

I move that Council award Contract 23-11, Police Vehicle Equipment Procurement and Upfitting, to Transdev Services, Inc. for the initial amount of \$248,739.32 for the equipment procurement and upfitting of a minimum of fifteen (15) police vehicles according to the contract terms, as well as additional upfitting needs at the rates and prices noted herein.



#### CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE CITY OF NEWARK

220 South Main Street · Newark, Delaware 19711 302.366.7000 · Fax 302.366.7035 · www.newarkde.gov

**Bid Security** 

Transdev Services, Inc Vendor

**CITY OF NEWARK** 

Delaware

CONTRACT NO. 23-11

POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

### NOTICE

Do not disassemble. Return intact with properly completed forms or bid may be rejected.

# **CITY OF NEWARK**

### Delaware

# CONTRACT NO. 23-11

# POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	PAGE
TABLE OF CONTENTS	1
NOTICE OF LETTING	2
GENERAL PROVISIONS	3
SPECIAL PROVISIONS	11
PROPOSAL	18
BOND TO ACCOMPANY PROPOSAL	20
NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT	22
APPENDIX A	23
APPENDIX B	24
APPENDIX C	25
APPENDIX D	26

#### CONTRACT NO. 23-11

### POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

#### **NOTICE OF LETTING**

Bids for Contract No. 23-11—Police Vehicle Equipment Procurement and Upfitting—will be received by the City of Newark Purchasing Division via email (<a href="mailto:contracts@newark.de.us">contracts@newark.de.us</a>) until 2:00 p.m., prevailing time, on Tuesday, August 1, 2023. Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud via virtual meeting shortly thereafter.

Please contact <u>contracts@newark.de.us</u> for additional information or with questions regarding the submission of this Contract. Questions/requests for information will be accepted until 5:00 p.m., prevailing time, on Friday, July 21, 2023.

Copies of the contract documents may be obtained by each prospective bidder on the City's website at <a href="https://www.newarkde.gov/bids">www.newarkde.gov/bids</a>

#### CONTRACT NO. 23-11

### POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### 1. BIDS

Each bid shall be submitted on the proposal form included herein. The proposal and all other required documents must be submitted via email to <a href="mailto:contracts@newark.de.us">contracts@newark.de.us</a> by 2:00 p.m., prevailing time, on Tuesday, August 1, 2023. The subject line should read "[Vendor name] bid for Contract No. 23-11." Each bid so submitted shall constitute an irrevocable offer for a period of sixty (60) days following the bid opening date.

#### 2. BID SECURITY

Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check, or cashier's check, or bid bond in the amount of 10 percent (10%) of the proposed bid price for the fifteen (15) minimum vehicles denoted in Section 1 of "Special Provisions" on page 11 below, payable to the City of Newark. Failure to provide the required bid security may be grounds for rejection of the bid.

If the successful bidder fails or refuses to execute and deliver the contract within twenty (20) calendar days after receiving notice of the award of the contract, the successful bidder shall forfeit to the City for such failure or refusal the security deposited with the bid. Any certified check or cashier's check submitted as security shall be returned to all unsuccessful bidders thirty (30) calendar days after the bid opening date. The successful bidder shall provide the City with a Performance Bond and Payment Bond in the full amount of the contract guaranteeing faithful performance of the contract. Such bonds shall be provided to the City with the executed contract within twenty (20) calendar days after receiving notice of award of the contract. Upon receipt of the contract surety bond, the City will return any certified check or cashier's check submitted as bid security by the successful bidder.

#### 3. TAXES

The price(s) quoted shall not include federal or state taxes where applicable. If applicable, the successful bidder shall provide the City with three (3) copies of the required tax exemption forms to accompany the bidder's invoice.

#### 4. AWARDS

The City Manager or designee shall review each of the bids submitted and make a recommendation to the City Council on the disposition of the bids. City Council reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids or parts of bids as they may determine and to waive any irregularities or defects where the best interest of the City would be served.

#### 5. BID PRICE

The bid price shall include all transportation, delivery, installation, and all charges for the goods and services specified for this project. The vendor will be held to have examined and be familiar with the entire Bid Specification prior to submitting their Bid Proposal. No allowance for additional compensation will be considered for failure to comply with this requirement.

#### 6. UNIT PRICES

When applicable, in the event of a conflict or error in extension from unit price to total amount, the unit prices shall prevail and shall be considered the correct bid figures. Bidders are cautioned to thoroughly review their bid figures for errors prior to submitting their proposal.

#### 7. LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS' CERTIFICATIONS

Each bidder shall execute and submit with every bid, when applicable, a list of subcontractors, including complete names and addresses, whose services the bidder intends to use in performing any work under the contract. Bids submitted without such a list, or with a list not completely or properly executed, are subject to rejection.

Each bidder is required to notify all subcontractors that they are obligated to comply with the provisions of Federal, State, and City law as they pertain to this project, and that they must submit evidence of such compliance upon notice or request. The bidder shall certify compliance with this requirement on the list of subcontractors.

After the contract has been awarded, the successful bidder shall not substitute a subcontractor for another subcontractor whose name was set forth on the subcontractor list which accompanied his bid, without the written consent of the City.

#### 8. LIABILITY INSURANCE

a. The Vendor shall always maintain and keep in force such insurance as will protect him from claims under Worker's Compensation Acts, and also such insurance as will protect him and the owner from any such claims for damages for personal injuries, including death, which may arise from operations under this contract, whether such operations be by the Vendor or by any Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them.

b. The Vendor shall be required to provide Workers' Compensation (WC)/Employer's Liability (EL) coverage with limits of insurance not less than:

\$500,000 Per Accident \$500,000 Per Illness, Employee \$500,000 Per Illness, Aggregate

The Vendor shall be required to provide Umbrella/Excess Liability coverage with limits of insurance not less than:

\$1,000,000 Each Occurrence \$1,000,000 Aggregate

The Vendor shall be required to provide Commercial General Liability (CGL) coverage with limits of insurance not less than:

\$1,000,000 Each Occurrence Limit \$1,000,000 Personal & Advertising Injury Limit \$2,000,000 Annual Aggregate Limit \$2,000,000 Products-Completed Operations Limit \$1,000,000 Business Auto Liability Limit (Owned, Hired, & Non-Owned Autos)

The Vendor, The City of Newark (Owner), and all other parties required of the Vendor shall be included as insured on the CGL, using Additional Insured Endorsements providing coverage as broad as the coverage provided for the named insured Subcontractor.

Subcontractors approved in association with the hiring of a Vendor shall be required to provide Commercial General Liability (CGL) coverage with limits of insurance in equal amount to those required of the Vendor.

c. A copy of the Certificate of Insurance must accompany each bid. The Prime Vendor's attention should be directed to other sections of the contract documents in the event additional insurance is required based on the scope of work.

#### 9. INSPECTIONS

All equipment shall be subject to final inspection. If, in any way, an item fails to meet the terms of the contract, it may be rejected, or liquidated damages charges made. The decision of the City will be final, and any rejected items or material will have to be replaced at the expense of the bidder.

#### **10. INTENT OF SPECIFICATIONS**

It shall be the bidder's responsibility to furnish the equipment specifically indicated in these specifications and such other as may be required.

#### 11. REGULATIONS AND EXCEPTIONS

Any and all exceptions which are taken to the specifications shall be noted on the Proposal form. The listing of an exception may be grounds for rejection. All equipment must meet all applicable federal or state regulations.

The application of lead paint as defined in Title 16, Chapter 30M of State Code and Chapter 7 of City Code as part of this contract is prohibited. The vendor will be subject to fines as outlined in State and City Code if it is determined that lead paint was applied in violation of State and City code.

Safety Data Sheet information for all paints applied to internal or external structures shall be provided to the City for review and approval prior to application. The vendor will be required to remove and remediate any lead paint to the satisfaction of the City, at no cost to the City. Prior to commencing removal and remediation efforts, the vendor shall provide a written remedial action plan which includes health safety protection requirements for both employees and the public for review and approval by the City and/or DNREC/DHSS.

Any and all sample results that are generated as a result of improper application of lead paint shall be provided to the City within 5 working days of being received by the vendor. The vendor will also be required to replace all paint removed with non-lead paint to the satisfaction of the City, and at no cost to the City. Failure to adequately remove, remediate, and replace lead paint applied in violation of State and City Code as outlined herein will be considered a breach of contract.

#### 12. STANDARDS AND MANUFACTURER'S WARRANTY

No material, supplies, or equipment to be installed as part of the work shall be purchased subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale or other agreement by which any interest therein or in any part thereof is retained by the seller or supplier. The vendor shall warrant good title to all material, supplies, and equipment installed or incorporated in the work and upon completion of all work, shall deliver the same together by him to the City free from any claims, liens, or charges. Neither the vendor nor any person, firm, or corporation furnishing any material or labor covered by this contract shall have any right to a lien upon any improvement or appurtenance thereon. Nothing contained in this paragraph, however, shall defeat or impair the right of persons furnishing materials or labor to recover under any bond given by the vendor for their protection or any right under any law permitting such persons to look to funds due the vendor in the hands of the City. The provisions of this paragraph shall be inserted in all subcontracts and material contracts and notice of its provisions shall be given to all persons furnishing materials for the work when no formal contract is entered into for such materials.

All equipment will be unused in all component parts and will be the latest current production including all accessories. The specifications will be construed as the minimum required. When the manufacturer's standards exceed these, the standard units will be furnished. All material will be free of defects. Manufacturer's standard warranties shall apply.

### 13. WORKMANSHIP

Workmanship shall conform to the best current manufacturing practice followed for equipment of the type. Component parts and units will be manufactured to definite standard dimensions, with proper fits and clearances.

#### 14. GUARANTEE

The vendor hereby guarantees all the work for a period of three (3) years after the date of completion and final acceptance thereof by the City as follows:

Against all faulty or imperfect materials and against all imperfect, careless, and/or unskilled workmanship.

The vendor agrees to replace with proper workmanship and materials, and to re-execute, correct, or repair without cost to the City, any work which may be found to be improper or imperfect and/or which fails to perform as specified.

The guarantee obligations assumed by the vendor under these contract documents shall not be held or taken to be in any way impaired because of the specifications, indication, or approval by or on behalf of the City of any articles, materials, means, combination of things use or to be used in the construction, performance, and competition of the work or any part thereof.

No use or acceptance by the city of the work or any part thereof, nor any failure to use the same nor any repairs, adjustments, replacements, or corrections made by the City due to the vendor's failure to comply with any of his obligations under the contract documents, shall impair in any way the guarantee obligations assumed by the vendor under these contract documents.

#### **15. ADVERTISEMENT**

Any bidder submitting a bid will not use the name of the City in any advertisement without first obtaining the written consent of the City Manager or their designee. All such requests should be submitted in writing to <a href="mailto:contracts@newark.de.us">contracts@newark.de.us</a>.

#### 16. EEO AND LICENSING

The bidder shall possess all business and other licenses required by the State of Delaware and the City of Newark. The bidder must also be a fair and equal opportunity employer.

#### 17. PREFERENCE FOR DELAWARE LABOR AND OTHER GRADING CRITERIA

According to Delaware State Law, any person, company, or corporation who violates the requirements of Delaware Code Title 29, Section 6962 regarding preference for Delaware Labor shall pay a penalty to the State Secretary of Finance equal to the amount of compensation paid to any person in violation of this Section. This regulation is waived if it conflicts with Federal requirements.

Due to the City's preference for a local vendor to oversee the procurement and installation of equipment, and quickly handle staff inquires, repair requests, or other issues, the location of the bidding vendor as well as subcontractors will be taken into strong consideration.

Other bid variables the City shall consider when reviewing bids are:

- Reputation/references
- Facility space for safe storage of vehicles and equipment
- Upfit warranty and/or guarantee
- Turnaround time
- Pricing

#### 18. NON-COLLUSION

The vendor shall not, either directly or indirectly, enter into any agreement, participate in any collusion, or otherwise take any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the contract.

#### 19. INQUIRIES AND ADDENDA

Any inquiries regarding the bidding process shall be directed to the Purchasing Division at contracts@newark.de.us by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, July 21, 2023. Any changes to the contract documents shall be made only by numbered addendum(a) issued not later than four (4) days prior to the date set for bid opening.

Prospective bidders shall bear the entire responsibility for being sure they have received all such addenda. No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of the City, either before or after the execution of this contract, shall affect or modify any of the terms or conditions outlined herein.

#### 20. DAMAGES FOR LATE DELIVERY

The dates for delivery of the equipment are important and may influence the award of the contract. Submitted delivery dates shall be calculated from the date of notification of award. Liquidated damages of \$125.00 per calendar day may be assessed by the City, at its discretion, for every day that delivery is extended beyond the submitted delivery date/turnaround time.

#### 21. PAYMENT

Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days from receipt of a completed vehicle, subject to final inspection and acceptance of the items by the City.

#### 22. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

This agreement may be terminated by the City upon thirty (30) days written notice if the vendor fails to perform satisfactorily in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract. In the event this agreement is terminated, the vendor shall be paid for services satisfactorily rendered up to the termination date.

### 23. INDEMNIFICATION & OWNERSHIP OF MATERIAL

The vendor shall solely be responsible and liable for the accuracy and completeness of all work performed and shall agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City of Newark, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits and proceedings arising out of, based upon, or caused by negligent acts, omissions or errors of or the infringement of any copyright of patent, by the vendor, its officers, agents, employees or subcontractors, in the performance of the contracted agreement.

All documents prepared and submitted pursuant to this RFP or contract shall be the property of the City upon submittal and will be subject to staff and public review and discussion in association with our public bidding and formal proposal process. Any information or documents deemed proprietary shall be so marked at time of submittal and limited to detail where the disclosure of contents could be prejudicial to competing offerors during the process of negotiation, and any commercial or financial information of a privileged or confidential nature.

#### 24. FORCE MAJEURE OCCURANCE

Upon the occurrence of a force majeure event, the City of Newark shall immediately notify the awarded vendor. In this instance, the City shall be excused from any further financial or contractual obligations for as long as such circumstances prevail. As used in this document, a "force majeure occurrence" means acts of God; acts of the public enemy; acts of the State and any other governmental entity in its sovereign or contractual capacity; fires; floods; epidemics or pandemics; quarantine restrictions; strikes or other labor disputes; freight embargoes; unusually severe weather; or other unusual event outside of the reasonable control of a party hereto that prevents a party to this Agreement from performing its contractual obligations.

#### 25. BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS

No contract will be awarded to any bidder who in the judgment of the City is not a responsible or fit bidder, or is not prepared with all the necessary experience, capital, organization, and equipment to conduct and complete the work for which the bidder proposes on the proposal form.

#### 26. SHIPPING & FREIGHT QUOTED

The prices quoted are those for which the material will be furnished F.O.B. Destination and include all charges that may be imposed during the period of the contract.

Unless otherwise specified and agreed upon by both parties in writing, all material shall be designated F.O.B. Destination and have freight included in quotations.

#### 27. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this contract (general, special, technical, or other) shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable. If a court finds that any provision of this contract is invalid or unenforceable, but that by limiting such provision it would become valid and enforceable, then such provision shall be deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited.

#### CONTRACT NO. 23-11

### POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

#### SPECIAL PROVISIONS

#### SCOPE OF WORK

This contract is for the procurement of new equipment, removal of old equipment, and installation of new or previously used equipment in Newark Police Department vehicles. The vendor shall provide ail tools, consumables, and labor to supplement the Newark Police Department's need for Vehicle Equipment and Upfitting, as described herein. The contract will require the vendor to cooperate with Newark Police Department representatives to ensure the department receives the most current state-of-the-art material and/or services. All components shall be furnished by the vendor unless otherwise noted. The awarded vendor shall supply all incidental consumables including but not limited to incidental components, electrical connections, nuts, bolts and fasteners necessary for the installations.

It should be noted that there is no maximum number of upfits or installations that will be outsourced to the awarded vendor per year. The awarded vendor will be given a minimum of fifteen (15) vehicles to procure equipment for and upfit, but additional procurement and upfitting services shall be completed on as-needed basis for the duration of the contract term at the prices noted in the "Proposal" section below.

The fifteen (15) minimum vehicles associated with this contract are all 2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit AWD. Specifically, twelve (12) of the vehicles will be fully marked per Appendix A, and three (3) will be Administrative per Appendix C. This is what the bid security should be based on (see Section 2 in "General Provisions").

#### 2. VEHICLES TO BE UPFIT

The Newark Police Department primarily operates and have the need to upfit the following:

- Chevrolet Tahoe PPV
- Chevrolet Silverado SSV
- Ford Interceptor SUV
- Dodge Ram SSV

#### Dodge Durango Pursuit AWD

In addition to the referenced police vehicles, the Newark Police Department shall retain the right to full or partial upfits of a variety of specialty vehicles, motorcycles, pickup trucks, SUVs, or sedans as described in any subsequent Purchase Order. The pricing for such upfitting of currently unknown vehicles shall be consistent with pricing outlined for the noted vehicles herein.

The bidding vendor shall provide standard pricing for the defined packages identified in appendices A through D and component pricing for individual services as requested. All pricing shall be all inclusive of wiring, fasteners, loom, fuses, clamps, bolts, nuts and any other consumables necessary to allow for complete operation of the component being installed. This pricing shall also be inclusive of any costs for procuring equipment and storing vehicles and equipment.

#### 3. EQUIPMENT SPECIFICATIONS

- A. Marked Patrol Vehicles
  See appendix A
- B. Unmarked Patrol Vehicles See appendix B
- C. Admin Vehicles
  See appendix C
- D. K9 VehiclesSee appendix D

The Newark Police Department shall reserve the right to utilize or re-utilize remanufactured and/or used equipment at their discretion and with advance notice. If other than new equipment is used, the vendor shall test, but otherwise not be liable for equipment warranty except as it applies to the agreed-to installation. For example: the Newark Police Department may from time to time require the vendor to install used equipment (i.e., prisoner partitions, weapon mounts, console, etc. from vehicles being turned in and replaced by the new vehicle). If, in the opinion of the vendor, such remanufactured and/or used equipment is unsuitable for installation, the vendor shall notify the Newark Police Department accordingly.

Should a piece of equipment or component specified in appendices A through D not be available, experience a significant cost increase, or not able to be installed in a specific vehicle, the vendor will be permitted to substitute with a comparable piece of equipment or

component. All substitutions must be approved prior to installation by the Newark Police Department.

#### 4. PROPOSAL PRICING

The vendor's proposal shall be inclusive of service charges for procuring material, storing material, and upfitting services. The cost of material shall not be included in this price—the cost of equipment procured shall be invoiced to the City by the awarded vendor once procured. Pricing on equipment shall be confirmed with the Newark Police Department.

While the pricing provided through bidders' submissions should be inclusive of all specifications outlined, not every piece of equipment will be needed for each upfitting. Prior to the procurement of equipment for equipment, NPD shall provide the awarded vendor with the needed equipment for each upfit.

Total price should be indicated on the "Proposal" form below, while unit pricing should be added to the appendices at the end of this document. All forms should be submitted as part of the vendor's bid.

#### 5. GENERAL UPFIT REQUIREMENTS

The vendor shall have and maintain appropriate manufacturer certification to receive direct vehicle shipments. The vendor shall be required to identify said manufacturers they are eligible to receive vehicle shipments from, and if awarded, shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the same certifications through the contract period. Should any individual manufacturer certification lapse during the awarded contract period, the awarded vendor shall immediately notify the Newark Police Department and the City of Newark Chief Purchasing Officer. Any certifications required by equipment manufacturers for installation of equipment will be the responsibility of the vendor to obtain.

#### A. TURNAROUND TIME

The vendor shall identify an approximate but realistic turnaround time associated with completion of a partial or full upfit for each of the vehicle specifications identified in appendices A through D. The Newark Police Department shall review and verify the ability of the vendor to meet the timeline as represented in their proposal. The vendor shall confirm ability to meet the proposed upfit installation timeline or is further obligated to notify the Newark Police Department of any anticipated delays.

All anticipated completion dates are contingent on receiving all necessary equipment in

a timely and operational condition. Turnaround times should take into consideration the ordering of equipment, removal and installation of equipment, and quality assurance checks. After work has commenced, any deviation or variances need to be identified to the Newark Police Department within 72 hours. Should it be determined that a vendor is consistently missing the timelines, the vendor will be subject to corrective action which may impact contract extensions and/or rebid awards.

#### B. RECEIPT AND SAFEGUARD OF EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES

The awarded vendor shall be required to receive, acknowledge, store, and safeguard vehicles and equipment to be upfitted. Vehicles shall be secured in an area protected by fences, security, and any other means necessary to protect the City of Newark's vehicle resources. On receipt, police vehicles and equipment shall be insured by the vendor against damage from vandalism, theft, accident and/or any other circumstance that may imperil or diminish City assets.

Vehicles delivered to a vendor's facility and/or subcontractor shall be the responsibility of the vendor on receipt, and until returned to the Newark Police Department. Responsibility shall extend and include retrieval to correct, repair and/or warranty a prior installation or repair.

Equipment to be used in vehicle upfitting (i.e. lightbars, sirens, electronics, etc.) shall be secured in a locked room, facility or similar, and shall be insured by the awarded vendor up to and until received back and acknowledged by the Newark Police Department or designated agent.

The Vendor shall inspect all shipments for damage or shortage in delivered quantities. If damage or shortage is noted, the Vendor must immediately contact the vehicle or equipment provider, note the condition of the received materials and request replacement or return necessary to affect the upfit installation requested. Any and all communications to vehicle and equipment manufacturers must copy the Newark Police Department. If the Vendor is unable to correct the received deficiency, the resolution must be immediately elevated to the Chief Purchasing Officer and/or Newark Police Department.

#### C. SPECIALIZED EQUIPMENT NEEDS

Partitions, consoles, gunlocks, Radar, etc., will be installed according to manufacturer's specifications in coordination with NPD. Some deviation may be required based on NPD's needs and as agreed to. Computer mount base and platform will be installed per manufacturers' instructions. Antennas will be installed as prescribed by NPD. In car

Camera System will be mounted as per manufacturer requirements. The specific location of components will be agreed upon by the agency and upfitter prior to full production. Modem/Router will be mounted as prescribed by Agency.

#### D. WIRING INSTALLATION

All wiring will follow the Vehicle manufacturer and the Equipment manufacturers' instructions. All wiring will be standardized and follow an agreed upon wiring schematic. NPD will be provided schematics as requested with Copyright rights for reproduction and use. Any item installed or wiring routed must be done in such a way to not interfere with any air bag deployment. All wiring connections must use any vehicle manufacturers wiring harnesses intended for upfitters. If any pass thru is already available and intended for an upfitter the pass thru will be used. Any other wiring pass thru in the fire wall and/or body must use grommets. All wiring must be color coded and uniform throughout all vehicles. Each wire run must be a continuous length (no splices). All connections must use a weatherproof (weatherpack type) connector that will allow the component it connects to, to be unplugged and removed without cutting any wires. Any wires that are connected with a butt connector will be the heat shrink type. No taps or scotch lock type connectors are allowed. Blunt cut ends not used will have a butt connector crimped on. All power connectors will originate from its' own power stud/connection and fused. Using a main power supply cable to a fused distribution buss is preferred. All grounds will be on a separate ground for that circuit.

Any harness/wires passing the outer shell of the vehicle will use a grommet and be sealed against water/air intrusion (Lightbar harness, etc). All power supply wires will be of adequate size to accommodate the maximum amperage draw plus 20%. Any exposed wire harnesses will be bundled in an appropriately sized loom and secured.

#### 6. INSPECTION

Completed vehicles will be inspected by a Newark Police Department representative upon delivery. If problems are found during the acceptance inspection, the vendor may correct any problems before leaving or they will be required to take the vehicle back for repair at no charge to the department. The vendor may agree to send their service truck and personnel to the City's site to make corrections.

Any damages (stripped fasteners, soiled interiors, burns, etc.) caused during installations must be repaired before delivery to the Newark Police Department. Broken Trim panels must be replaced with new. Any cables or wiring found after the inspection to have been damaged during installation (crushed, fasteners piercing insulation, cuts, cross threaded, stripped threads, etc.) will be the responsibility of the vendor to remove and replace at no cost to the

department.

An initial visit or schedule to correct noted deficiencies will be completed and/or scheduled with the Newark Police Department within 48 hours of notification of suspected problem.

If a problem potentially affects the safety or serviceability all repairs must be done immediately.

#### 7. INSTALLATION WARRANTY

Responding vendors shall clearly identify their warranty and any limitation on the warranty applied to materials and equipment installed on behalf of the Newark Police Department.

If the Newark Police Department contacts the vendor, the vendor shall be responsible for fixing, correcting, programming or otherwise re-installing defective equipment. Transportation to and from the repair agency or location shall be at the cost and the responsibility of the awarded vendor. Corrective repairs including but not limited to programming, repair, replacement and/or re-installation shall occur at vendor's expense.

The vendor shall reserve the right to attempt repair(s) on agency premises, but shall only be granted permission on request, and shall supply all equipment necessary to complete corrective actions.

If a repair is identified as not a fault of the vendor, including defective equipment, the vendor shall promptly notify the Newark Police Department, and request authorization prior to completing said repairs. The vendor shall retain the right to back charge the Newark Police Department the flat rate service charge at the rate identified in their awarded.

The awarded vendor shall take every reasonable precaution to avoid the invalidation of manufacturer warranty on products and components installed or serviced.

#### 8. REMOVAL OF INSTALLED EQUIPMENT

The Newark Police Department may request the awarded vendor remove installed equipment from a previously upfit vehicle. Bidding vendors shall provide an hourly price or price per unit of equipment they are willing to uninstall or remove. If and when this requirement exists, the Newark Police Department will obtain pricing from the upfit vendor and the department has the right to accept or reject the pricing.

At a minimum, the following requirements MUST be met:

Appropriate care and protection of city-owned equipment and vehicles must remain of

critical importance.

- Lightbars must be removed with wiring harness intact. If any installation prevents the removal with the wiring harness still connected, the vendor must notify the Newark Police Department and obtain approval prior to removal.
- All power leads MUST be 'tied off' or otherwise secured from short circuiting the vehicle and/or the vehicle equipment electrical circuits. The Newark Police Department may specify full removal of power leads as deemed appropriate but shall notify the vendor prior to removal.
- Vendors are discouraged from cutting wires to remove remaining equipment, but may leave wires in place, bundled and tucked in and behind panels as appropriate.
- All removed panels must be replaced.

NOTE: Vendors that return previously operational vehicles in an inoperable or in a short circuit status will be required to resolve and correct at their own expense and at the timetable as identified by the Newark Police Department.

#### 9. CONTRACT PERIOD

The length of the contract will be for two (2) years commencing at the time of contract execution. By mutual consent of the contracted firm and the City, the contract may be renewed or extended for two (2) additional one (1) year periods, not to exceed a total of four (4) years. This option shall only be exercised if agreed to in writing by both parties and approved by the City Manager and/or City Council where applicable.

#### 10. <u>BIDS</u>

All bids must be submitted on the "Proposal" form provided in this contract document by 2:00 p.m., prevailing time, on Tuesday, August 1, 2023.

### 11. VENDOR REFERENCES AND WORK EXAMPLES

Upon request, the bidder shall supply to City staff examples of previous related work completed as well as previous customer references.

#### CONTRACT NO. 23-11

#### POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

#### **PROPOSAL**

TO:

The Mayor and City Council

Newark, Delaware

FROM:

Transdev Services, Inc. (Formerly FMT)

The undersigned as a lawfully authorized agent for the below named Bidder has carefully examined the General Provisions, Special Provisions, Equipment Specifications, and Proposal to be known as Contract No. 23-11 and binds himself upon award to him by the Mayor and City Council of Newark, Delaware to execute in accordance with such award, a contract of which contract this Proposal and said General Provisions and any Addenda shall be a part, and to furnish the equipment as specified F.O.B. Newark, Delaware in a manner that is in complete accordance with said General Provisions, Special Provisions, and Technical Specifications, at the following named prices for the items:

#### SPECIFIC PACKAGES- INSTALLATION ONLY

	Total	Turnaround Time (After
Vehicle Type	Price	Receiving Equipment)
Patrol Marked	\$19713.73 ea	7 business days
Patrol Unmarked	\$19407.14 ea	7 business days
Admin	\$6994.06 ea	3 business days
К9	\$20697.45 ea	8 business days

#### **ADDITIONAL SERVICES**

Service	Hourly Rate, as spec'd
Upfit removal - Rate shall be listed as Cost	\$95.00/ hr
Per Hour	\$55.00/ Til
Optional Installation/Repair outside of	\$95.00/ hr
warranty - Rate shall be listed as Cost Per	\$55.00/ III
Hour	

This proposal shall be irrevocable for a period of 60 days after bids are opened.

We acknowledge receipt of Addendum(s) [	No(s)1
Exceptions: None	
	9
9	
We acknowledge that we are not (circle acknowledge that there are no exceptions	le one) registered on <u>www.sam.gov</u> . We also noted against us as outlined on <u>www.sam.gov</u> .
www.sam.gov unique entity identifier (UEI)	# - if applicable: MT4CQ4PJHE9
DATE:8/4/2023	BIDDER: Transdev Services, Inc.
	BY:
	Legally authorized representative.
	PRINT NAME: Jason Stack
	TITLE: Region Vice President
	ADDRESS: 9962 Brook Road, Suite 824
	CITY, STATE, ZIP: Glen Allen, VA 23059
	TELEPHONE: 804-306-9857

#### CONTRACT NO. 23-11

### POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

# BOND TO ACCOMPANY PROPOSAL (not necessary if certified or cashier's check is used)

(Hot Houssally it defined of cashiel 5 check is asset)
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT Transdev Services, Inc. of
Lombard of the County of DuPage and
State of ILprincipal, and _Endurance Assurance Corporation _ of _DE
as surety, legally authorized to do business in the State of Delaware, are held and firmly bound
In the autount equal to unto the City of Newark in the sum of 1035summin contract value. Dollars, to be paid to said City of Newark
for use and benefit of the Mayor and Council of Newark, for which payment well and truly to be
made, we do bind ourselves, our and each of our heirs, executors, administrators and successors,
jointly and severally, for and in the whole, firmly by these presents. Sealed with our seal dated
the 26th day of July in the year of our Lord, two thousand and twenty (2020).
NOW THE CONDITIONS OF THIS OBLIGATIONS IS SUCH, that if the above bounded principal
who has submitted to said City of Newark, a certain proposal to enter into a certain Contract No. 23-
11, Police Vehicle Equipment Upfitting, and if said shall well and truly enter into and executes said
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,

contract and furnish therewith such Surety Bond or Bonds as may be required by the terms of said contract and approved by said City of Newark, said Contract, and said Bond to be entered into within ten (10) days after the date of official notice of award thereof in accordance with the terms of said proposal, then this obligation to be void, otherwise shall remain in full force and virtue.

20

SIGNED AND SEALED IN THE PRESENCE OF WITNESS:

Jan & Prosince

SIGNED (SEAL)

BY Maine Le Borns (FO (SEAL)

Endurance Assurance Corporation

SIGNED (SEAL)

BY Megan J. Schlueter, Attorney-in-Fact (SEAL)



# POWER OF ATTORNEY

2640

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, that Endurance Assurance Corporation, a Delaware corporation, Endurance American Insurance Company, a Delaware corporation, Lexon Insurance Company, a Texas corporation, and/or Bond Safeguard Insurance Company, a South Dakota corporation, each, a "Company" and collectively, "Sompo International," do hereby constitute and appoint: Megan J. Schlueter, Antonio V. Corasaniti, Annette M. Smith, Janine A. Kappen as true and lawful Attorney(s)-In-Fact to make, execute, seal, and deliver for, and on its behalf as surety or co-surety; bonds and undertakings given for any and all purposes, also to execute and deliver on its behalf as aforesaid renewals, extensions, agreements, waivers, consents or stipulations relating to such bonds or undertakings provided, however, that no single bond or undertaking so made, executed and delivered shall obligate the Company for any portion of the penal sum thereof in excess of the sum of ONE HUNDRED MILLION Dollars (\$100,000,000.00).

Such bonds and undertakings for said purposes, when duly executed by said attorney(s)-in-fact, shall be binding upon the Company as fully and to the same extent as if signed by the President of the Company under its corporate seal attested by its Corporate Secretary.

This appointment is made under and by authority of certain resolutions adopted by the sole shareholder of each Company by unanimous written consent effective the 15<sup>th</sup> day of June, 2019, a copy of which appears below under the heading entitled "Certificate".

This Power of Attorney is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution adopted by the sole shareholder of each Company by unanimous written consent effective the 15th day of June, 2019 and said resolution has not since been revoked, amended or repealed:

RESOLVED, that the signature of an individual named above and the seal of the Company may be affixed to any such power of attorney or any certificate relating thereto by facsimile, and any such power of attorney or certificate bearing such facsimile signature or seal shall be valid and binding upon the Company in the future with respect to any bond or undertaking to which it is attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Company has caused this instrument to be signed by the following officers, and its corporate seal to be affixed this 15th day of June, 2019.

Endurance Assurance Corporation

By: Flederal Company

Richard Appel: SVR-8 Senior Counsel

SEAL 2002

Endurance American Insurance Company

Richard Appel: SVP & Senior Counsel

SEAL 1996 DELAWARE Lexon Insurance Company

Richard Appel; SVR & Senior Counsel

Bond Safeguard Insurance Company

Richard Appel, SVP & Senior Counsel



<u>ACKNOWLEDGEMENT</u>

On this 15th day of June, 2019, before me, personally came the above signatories known to me, who being duly sworn, did depose and say that he/they is after officer of each of the Companies; and that he executed said instrument on behalf of each Company by authority of his office under the by aws of each Company.

Amy Taylor, Notary Public My Commission

CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned Officer of each Company, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that:

- That the original power of attorney of which the foregoing is a copy was duly executed on behalf of each Company and has not since been revoked, amended or modified; that the undersigned has compared the foregoing copy thereof with the original power of attorney, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the original power of attorney and of the whole thereof:
- 2. The following are resolutions which were adopted by the sole shareholder of each Company by unanimous written consent effective June 15, 2019 and said resolutions have not since been revoked, amended or modified:

"RESOLVED, that each of the individuals named below is authorized to make, execute, seal and deliver for and on behalf of the Company any and all bonds, undertakings or obligations in surety or co-surety with others: RICHARD M. APPEL, BRIAN J. BEGGS, CHRISTOPHER DONELAN, SHARON L. SIMS, CHRISTOPHER L. SPARRO, MARIANNE L. WILBERT

; and be it further

RESOLVED, that each of the Individuals named above is authorized to appoint attorneys-in-fact for the purpose of making, executing, sealing and delivering bonds, undertakings or obligations in surety or co-surety for and on behalf of the Company."

3. The undersigned further certifies that the above resolutions are true and correct copies of the resolutions as so recorded and of the whole thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal this 26th day of July 20 23

By: Daniel S. Lurie, Secretary

NOTICE: U. S. TREASURY DEPARTMENT'S OFFICE OF FOREIGN ASSETS CONTROL (OFAC)

No coverage is provided by this Notice nor can it be construed to replace any provisions of any surety bond or other surety coverage provided. This Notice provides information concerning possible impact on your surety coverage due to directives issued by OFAC. Please read this Notice carefully.

The Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) administers and enforces sanctions policy, based on Presidential declarations of "national emergency". OFAC has identified and listed numerous foreign agents, front organizations, terrorists organizations, and narcotics traffickers as "Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons". This list can be located on the United States Treasury's website – <a href="https://www.treasury.gov/resource-center/sanctions/SDN-List">https://www.treasury.gov/resource-center/sanctions/SDN-List</a>.

In accordance with OFAC regulations, if it is determined that you or any other person or entity claiming the benefits of any coverage has violated U.S. sanctions law or is a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person, as identified by OFAC, any coverage will be considered a blocked or frozen contract and all provisions of any coverage provided are immediately subject to OFAC. When a surety bond or other form of surety coverage is considered to be such a blocked or frozen contract, no payments nor premium refunds may be made without authorization from OFAC. Other limitations on the premiums and payments may also apply.

Any reproductions are vold.

# CONTRACT NO. 23-11

# POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT UPFITTING

### NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT

			Date: 7/31/2023
City of Newark Newark, Delaware			
This is to certify that the	e undersigned bidde	er <u>Transdev Services, Inc</u>	
has not, either directly o	r indirectly entered	into any agreement, part	icipated in any collusion, or
otherwise taken any actio	on in restraint of free	e competitive bidding in co	onnection with this proposal
submitted to the City of	Newark on the3	1 day of _July	, 20 <u>23</u> .
	E	By: <u>W.C. Pihl - Senior Vice</u>	e President - Business Development orized representative
Sworn to and subscribed	before me on this _	31 day ofJuly	20_23
My Commission expires	June 30, 2025		
	Channelle Johnson NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF OHIO My Commission Expires June 30, 2025	NS	tary Public

			г			
		Appendix A Marked Dodge Durango				
Δ	PART NUMBER	DESCRIPTION	PRICE		TOTAL	
1	EMPLB	Soundoff Signal Mpower Light Bar	\$ 2,0	\$ 2,010.00	\$ 2,0	2,010.00
7	EMPS1STS3J	R/B Soundoff Signal Mpower - Grille Lights	Ş	105.12	\$	210.24
7	EMPS2STS4J	R/B Soundoff Signal Mpower Fog Light		117.60		235.20
1	ETSS100J	Soundoff Signal 100W Speaker Front Bumper	ψ.	156.00		156.00
П	ETSS100CBKDC15	Soundoff Signal Speaker Bracket Front Bumper	٠٠	61.44	\ \ \	61.44
4	PMP2WDG15B	Soundoff Signal 15deg Wedges Running Boards	↔	92.9	5	27.04
4	EMPS2STS5RBW	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mounts - R/B/W Running Board lights		├		522.24
7	ELUC3H010J	Soundoff Signal Undercovers - R/B Headlamps	ψ.	79.68		159.36
7	PLUCTCL1	Twist Lock Collars Headlamps	٠,	-	<sub>4</sub> ,	6.00
7	ENT3B3RBW	R/B/W Soundoff Signal RBW Intersectors Mirrors	l	178.56		357.12
7	PNT3BUMB4	Soundoff Signal Mirror Mounts		-		44.16
П	EMP1STS1A	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount- Amber Inside D/S Front Door	₩.	72.00	\ \$	72.00
7	ETFBSSN-P	Taillamp Flasher	Υ-	48.96	₹	97.92
2	EMPS2STS4J	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - R/B Rear Bumper		117.60		235.20
П	ENGSA5100RSP	Soundoff Signal 500 Siren - 100W - Remote - Push Button	₩.	692.60	\$	692.60
m	ENGND04102	Soundoff Signal Remote Node		156.00		468.00
m	ENGHNK03	Soundoff Signal Remote Node Harness	\$	89.62		239.04
П	ENGLMK008	Soundoff Signal Link Module		258.00		258.00
П	ETSKLF100	Soundoff Signal Aftershock Siren - 100W Speaker	\$	426.00	\$	426.00
П	ETSSLFVBK02	Soundoff Signal Aftershock Speaker Bracket	↔	28.32	ψ.	28.32
Н	ECVDMLTAL00	Red/White Dome Lamp	φ.	92.29	\$	65.76
1	7170-0885-00	Gamber Johnson Console, Printer Armrest, Cup Holders	\$	596.83	\$	596.83
Н	INCLUDED	Gamber Johnson Siren Faceplate	\$		\$	3
	INCLUDED	Gamber Johnson Radio Faceplate	\$		<u>ۍ</u>	Ü
-	MAGNETIC MIC	Magnetic Mic	\$	47.94	ş	47.94
0	INCLUDED	Gamber Johnson Beverage Holder	φ.	*//	<u>ئ</u>	i)
н	16298	Gamber Johnson 4.5" Storage Tray	ᡐ	39.19	\$	39.19
П	7160-0429	Gamber Johnson Arm Rest	\$	140.76	Ş	140.76
П	7160-0250-01	Gamber Johnson Computer Mount	\$	273.24	; \$	273.24
Н	PK1130DUR11	Setina Full Prisoner Partition	\$	786.93	\$	786.93
1	WK0514DUR11H	Setina Window Guard	.,	262.54	\$	262.54

\$ 14,555.92	ŝ				
\$425.00		\$425.00	SHIPPING	SHIPPING	4
	❖	\$ -		) Allouing	7
6	2	,	Polari dimon (Material 1911 p. 1911)	_	c
	V		Axon Fleet Mobile In-Car solution (Agency provided)	0	$\circ$
517.83	Ş	\$ 517.83		FJ/23	
434.83	ş	\$ 434.83 \$		OF-INZOOU	1
\$ 1,759.12	۸	\$ 1,759.12	Off All Land Control C	SOCIAL OF	-
1	٠ (	t t	MB01-19005GB-GA   Cradlepoint R1900-5GB - Wireless router with Low Profile 9-in-1 5G Dome Blk Etd Ext Chic	MB01-19005	Н
	v	\$	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount Radio (Agency needs to povide)	0	٥
645.58	s	\$ 645.58		GNZUOTE	-1
1,0/0,10	7	C1.5.1017		100000	,
1 375 70	v	\$ 1 375 79 \$ 1 375 70	UR11   Setina Weapon Vault	TK0233DUR11	7
878 70	v	\$ 878.70 \$	UR11 Setina Cargo Mount	TK1460DUR11	-

		Appendix B Unmarked Dodge Durango				
Ğ Ţ	PART NUMBER	DESCRIPTION	PRICE		TOTAL	
	ENFWBF	R/B/W Soundoff Signal Visor Lightbar	ψ	837.50	\$	837.50
Н	ENFWBR	R/B/A Soundoff Signal Upper Rear Hatch Lightbar	4	693.75	₩.	693.75
7	EMPS2STS4J	R/B Soundoff Signal Mpower Fog Light	Υ	117.60	43-	235.20
4	EMPS1STS3J	R/B Soundoff Signal Mpower - Grille Lights and Downward License Plate	φ.	105.12	ۍ.	420.48
	ETSS100CBKDC15	Soundoff Signal Speaker Bracket Front Bumper	45	61.44	₩.	61.44
7	PMP2WSSSB	Soundoff Signal Singale Window Shroud	❖	12.00	ş	24.00
4	EMPS2STS4J	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mounts - R/B Side Rear Side Windows and Front Lower Windshield	↔	117.60	\$	470.40
7	ELUC3H010J	Soundoff Signal Undercovers - R/B Headlamps	\$	79.68	\$	159.36
7	PLUCTCL1	Twist Lock Collars Headlamps	45	3.00	₹	6.00
7	ENT3B3RBW	R/B/W Soundoff Signal RBW Intersectors Mirrors	ş	178.56	₩	357.12
7	PNT3BUMB4	Soundoff Signal Mirror Mounts	\$	22.08	4	44.16
Н	EMP1STS1A	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount- Amber Inside D/S Front Door	\$	72.00	ψ	72.00
П	ETSS100J	Soundoff Signal 100W Speaker	\$	156.00	\$	156.00
7	EMPS2STS4J	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - R/B Rear Bumper	❖	117.60	⋄	235.20
П	ENGSA5100RSP	Soundoff Signal 500 Siren - 100W - Remote - Push Button	\$	692.60	\$	692.60
m	ENGND04102	Soundoff Signal Remote Node	\$	156.00	⋄	468.00
m	ENGHNK03	Soundoff Signal Remote Node Harness	s	29.62	ş	239.04
Н	ENGLMK008		<b>⊹</b>	258.00	ψ	258.00
<del>-</del> -	ETSKLF100	Soundoff Signal Aftershock Siren - 100W Speaker	ş	426.00	ς,	426.00
	ETSSLFVBK02	Soundoff Signal Aftershock Speaker Bracket	⋄	28.32	φ.	28.32
П	ECVDMLTAL00	Red/White Dome Lamp	\$	65.76	\$	65.76
7	ETFBSSN-P	Taillamp Flasher	\$	48.96	❖	97.92
<u> </u>	PMP2WSDDB	Soundoff Signal Double Window Shroud	\$	16.80	ş	16.80
Н	INCLUDED	Gamber Johnson Radio Faceplate	s	E	\$	10
П	MAGNETIC MIC	Magnetic Mic	⋄	47.94	ş	47.94
0	INCLUDED	Gamber Johnson Beverage Holder	↔	)	÷	10
Н	16298	Gamber Johnson 4.5" Storage Tray	ş	39.19	\$	39.19
П	7160-0429	Gamber Johnson Arm Rest	\$	140.76	\$	140.76
-	7160-0250-01	Gamber Johnson Computer Mount	\$	273.24	\$	273.24
-	7170-0885-00	Gamber Johnson Console, Printer Armrest, Cup Holders	\$	596.83	\$	596.83
<b>T</b>	INCLUDED	Gamber Johnson Siren Faceplate	\$	ı	φ.	ŧ

APPENDIX B DARFI

П	TK1460DUR11	Setina Cargo Mount	\$ 878.70 \$	20/		878 70
1	PK1130DUR11	Setina Full Prisoner Partition	\$ 786.93	2 2	1	786 93
П	WK0514DUR11H	WK0514DUR11H Setina Window Guard	¢ 262.54		25.	757 54
Н	TK0233DUR11	Setina Weapon Vault	\$ 202.34 \$ 1375.70 \$ 1375.70	t 2	1 275	10.7
1	GK2001E	SETINA Blac-Rac Weapon Mount	\$ 1,57,57,5	1 0	2/2/1	6/15/13
0	0	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount Radio (Agency needs to povide)		2 2	2	000
1	MB01-19005GB-GA	MB01-19005GB-GA   Cradlepoint R1900-5GB - Wireless router with I ow Profile 9-in-1 5G Dome RIV -Etd Evt Chis	Ç 2 7EO	٠ - ٢	1750	, ,
-	GP-IN2680	9*1 ANTENNA	5 1,139.12 \$ 1,739.12	7 5	T,/39	717
	PJ723	Brothers Pocket let (P1763) printer	\$ 454.05	2 5	454.83	20
		correction (1970) prince	5 517.83	33   \$	517	517.83
9	0	Axon Fleet Mobile In-Car solution (Agency provided)	\$	Ş		10
0	0	Delay timer (Not needed with Blue Print)		10		Ι,
٦	SHIPPING	SHIP ALL PARTS	¢ 42E00	5	127	2
				2	423.00	20:

\$ 14,249.33

		Annandly C.K.o Dodgo Pam	Γ			
Q ₹	PART NUMBER	DESCRIPTION	PRICE		TOTA!	
Н	ENFWBF	R/B/W Soundoff Signal Visor Lightbar	\$	37.50	S	837.50
Н	ENFWBR	R/B/A Soundoff Signal Upper Rear Hatch Lightbar		693.75	₩.	693.75
7	EMPS2STS4J	R/B Soundoff Signal Mpower Fog Light	٠	117.60	\$	235.20
7	EMPS1STS3J	R/B Soundoff Signal Mpower - Rear Bumper	₩	105.12	\$	210.24
Н	ETSS100CBKDC15	Soundoff Signal Speaker Bracket Front Bumper	\$	61.44	\$	61.44
7	ENT3B3RBW	R/B/W Soundoff Signal RBW Intersectors Mirrors	1	178.56	\$	357.12
7	PNT3BUMB4	Soundoff Signal Mirror Mounts	ψ.	22.08	ş	44.16
П	TETH	Wig/Wag Flasher	\$	72.00	3	72.00
7	ETFBSSN-P	Taillamp Flasher	⟨\$	48.96	\$	97.92
П	ETSA481RSP	Siren with remote head	<b>₹</b>	65.76	\$	65.76
	7170-0885-00	Gamber Johnson Console, Printer Armrest, Cup Holders	43-	596.83	\$	596.83
Н	INCLUDED	Gamber Johnson Siren Faceplate	\$	ï	ş	
Н	INCLUDED	Gamber Johnson Radio Faceplate	s	î	ş	ř
	INCLUDED	Gamber Johnson Beverage Holder	÷	á	is.	ã
н	7160-0429	Gamber Johnson Arm Rest	\$	140.76	⋄	140.76
П	AUX	3 12 volt outlets and 2 USB	\$	73.85	ℴ	73.85
1	7160-0250-01	Gamber Johnson Computer Mount		273.24	₹.	273.24
Н	AAUTILITY CAGE	American Aluminum dog kennel	\$4,	4,620.00	\$	4,620.00
	ACE K-9	Hot and POP (Included with Kennel)	❖	ı	₩.	i
1		Fan kit (Included with Kennel)	45	ı	Ŷ	ń
Н	RSAM BOX	Two Drawer Vault	\$ 2,	\$ 2,077.90	ı	2,077.90
77	TONNEAU	Tri fold tonneau cover	\$ 1,	\$ 1,495.00	\$ 1	1,495.00
0	0	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount Radio (Agency needs to povide)	ş	ī	ℴ	
П	MB01-19005GB-GA	Cradlepoint R1900-5GB - Wireless router with Low Profile 9-in-1 5G Dome Blk -Ftd Ext Cbls	\$ 1,	1,759.12	\$ 1	1,759.12
Н	GP-IN2680	9*1 ANTENNA	\$	434.83	↔	434.83
П	PJ723	Brothers Pocket Jet (PJ763) printer	\$	517.83	\$	517.83
0	0	Axon Fleet Mobile In-Car solution (Agency provided)	Ş		\$	-
0	0	Delay timer (Not needed with Blue Print)	\$	1	\$	75
<del>-</del> -1	SHIPPING	SHIPPING	\$	\$950.00	70	\$950.00

		Annendix C Admin Dodge Durango	_		
QIY	QTY PART NUMBER	DESCRIPTION	- Constant	Į	
,	100000000	1000	LINE		آ اند
7	EMPS1S1S3	K/B Soundoff Signal Mpower - Grille Lights	\$ 105.12	v	210.24
Н	ENFWBR	R/B/A Soundoff Signal Hatch Lightbar	\$ 693.75		693 75
⊣	ETSS100J	Soundoff Signal 100W Speaker Front Bumper	\$ 156.00	v	156.00
Н	ETSS100CBKDC15	ETSS100CBKDC15   Soundoff Signal Speaker Bracket Front Bumper	1	٠.	61 44
2	ENT3B3RBW	R/B/W Soundoff Signal RBW Intersectors Mirrors	¢ 178 56	٧ د	357 17
7	PNT3BUMB4	Soundoff Signal Mirror Mounts	37.00	۲ ر	327.75
2	FTFRSSN-P		\$ 42.00	դ].	44.10
,		ייייין אין ומאורנו	\$ 48.96	S	97.92
7	EMPS2STS4J	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - R/B Rear Bumper	\$ 117.60	s	235.20
н	ETSS481RSP	Soundoff Signal 400 Siren - 100W - Remote - Push Button	\$ 574.08		574 08
7	PMP2WSDDB	Soundoff Signal Dual Window Shroud	\$ 16.80		33 60
1	EMPS2STS5RBW	EMPS2STS5RBW R/B/W Soundoff Signal Mpower - Upper Windshield	\$ 130.56	٧,	130 56
1	TK1460DUR11	Setina Cargo Mount		٧	878 70
1	TK0233DUR11	Setina Weapon Vault	\$ 1375 79 \$ 1375 79	٠ ٠	275 79
0	0	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount Radio (Agency needs to povide)	- 'S - 'S		1
1	SHIPPING	SHIPPING	\$155.00	,	\$155.00

\$ 5,003.56



# CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE

CITY OF NEWARK

220 South Main Street · Newark, Delaware 19711 302.366.7000 · Fax 302.366.7035 · www.newarkde.gov

Bank Check
Bid Security

DBA Elite Vehicle Solutions
Vendor

**CITY OF NEWARK** 

Delaware

CONTRACT NO. 23-11

POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

### NOTICE

Do not disassemble. Return intact with properly completed forms or bid may be rejected.

# **CITY OF NEWARK**

### Delaware

# CONTRACT NO. 23-11

### POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	PAGE
TABLE OF CONTENTS	1
NOTICE OF LETTING	2
GENERAL PROVISIONS	3
SPECIAL PROVISIONS	11
PROPOSAL	18
BOND TO ACCOMPANY PROPOSAL	20
NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT	22
APPENDIX A	23
APPENDIX B	24
APPENDIX C	25
APPENDIX D	26

#### CONTRACT NO. 23-11

### POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

### NOTICE OF LETTING

Bids for Contract No. 23-11—Police Vehicle Equipment Procurement and Upfitting—will be received by the City of Newark Purchasing Division via email (<a href="mailto:contracts@newark.de.us">contracts@newark.de.us</a>) until 2:00 p.m., prevailing time, on Tuesday, August 1, 2023. Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud via virtual meeting shortly thereafter.

Please contact <u>contracts@newark.de.us</u> for additional information or with questions regarding the submission of this Contract. Questions/requests for information will be accepted until 5:00 p.m., prevailing time, on Friday, July 21, 2023.

Copies of the contract documents may be obtained by each prospective bidder on the City's website at  $\underline{www.newarkde.gov/bids}$ 

#### CITY OF NEWARK Delaware

#### CONTRACT NO. 23-11

### POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### 1. BIDS

Each bid shall be submitted on the proposal form included herein. The proposal and all other required documents must be submitted via email to <a href="mailto:contracts@newark.de.us">contracts@newark.de.us</a> by 2:00 p.m., prevailing time, on Tuesday, August 1, 2023. The subject line should read "[Vendor name] bid for Contract No. 23-11." Each bid so submitted shall constitute an irrevocable offer for a period of sixty (60) days following the bid opening date.

#### 2. BID SECURITY

Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check, or cashier's check, or bid bond in the amount of 10 percent (10%) of the proposed bid price for the fifteen (15) minimum vehicles denoted in Section 1 of "Special Provisions" on page 11 below, payable to the City of Newark. Failure to provide the required bid security may be grounds for rejection of the bid.

If the successful bidder fails or refuses to execute and deliver the contract within twenty (20) calendar days after receiving notice of the award of the contract, the successful bidder shall forfeit to the City for such failure or refusal the security deposited with the bid. Any certified check or cashier's check submitted as security shall be returned to all unsuccessful bidders thirty (30) calendar days after the bid opening date. The successful bidder shall provide the City with a Performance Bond and Payment Bond in the full amount of the contract guaranteeing faithful performance of the contract. Such bonds shall be provided to the City with the executed contract within twenty (20) calendar days after receiving notice of award of the contract. Upon receipt of the contract surety bond, the City will return any certified check or cashier's check submitted as bid security by the successful bidder.

#### 3. TAXES

The price(s) quoted shall not include federal or state taxes where applicable. If applicable, the successful bidder shall provide the City with three (3) copies of the required tax exemption forms to accompany the bidder's invoice.

#### 4. AWARDS

The City Manager or designee shall review each of the bids submitted and make a recommendation to the City Council on the disposition of the bids. City Council reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids or parts of bids as they may determine and to waive any irregularities or defects where the best interest of the City would be served.

#### 5. BID PRICE

The bid price shall include all transportation, delivery, installation, and all charges for the goods and services specified for this project. The vendor will be held to have examined and be familiar with the entire Bid Specification prior to submitting their Bid Proposal. No allowance for additional compensation will be considered for failure to comply with this requirement.

#### 6. UNIT PRICES

When applicable, in the event of a conflict or error in extension from unit price to total amount, the unit prices shall prevail and shall be considered the correct bid figures. Bidders are cautioned to thoroughly review their bid figures for errors prior to submitting their proposal.

#### 7. LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS' CERTIFICATIONS

Each bidder shall execute and submit with every bid, when applicable, a list of subcontractors, including complete names and addresses, whose services the bidder intends to use in performing any work under the contract. Bids submitted without such a list, or with a list not completely or properly executed, are subject to rejection.

Each bidder is required to notify all subcontractors that they are obligated to comply with the provisions of Federal, State, and City law as they pertain to this project, and that they must submit evidence of such compliance upon notice or request. The bidder shall certify compliance with this requirement on the list of subcontractors.

After the contract has been awarded, the successful bidder shall not substitute a subcontractor for another subcontractor whose name was set forth on the subcontractor list which accompanied his bid, without the written consent of the City.

#### 8. LIABILITY INSURANCE

a. The Vendor shall always maintain and keep in force such insurance as will protect him from claims under Worker's Compensation Acts, and also such insurance as will protect him and the owner from any such claims for damages for personal injuries, including death, which may arise from operations under this contract, whether such operations be

by the Vendor or by any Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them.

b. The Vendor shall be required to provide Workers' Compensation (WC)/Employer's Liability (EL) coverage with limits of insurance not less than:

\$500,000 Per Accident \$500,000 Per Illness, Employee \$500,000 Per Illness, Aggregate

The Vendor shall be required to provide Umbrella/Excess Liability coverage with limits of insurance not less than:

\$1,000,000 Each Occurrence \$1,000,000 Aggregate

The Vendor shall be required to provide Commercial General Liability (CGL) coverage with limits of insurance not less than:

\$1,000,000 Each Occurrence Limit \$1,000,000 Personal & Advertising Injury Limit \$2,000,000 Annual Aggregate Limit \$2,000,000 Products-Completed Operations Limit \$1,000,000 Business Auto Liability Limit (Owned, Hired, & Non-Owned Autos)

The Vendor, The City of Newark (Owner), and all other parties required of the Vendor shall be included as insured on the CGL, using Additional Insured Endorsements providing coverage as broad as the coverage provided for the named insured Subcontractor.

Subcontractors approved in association with the hiring of a Vendor shall be required to provide Commercial General Liability (CGL) coverage with limits of insurance in equal amount to those required of the Vendor.

c. A copy of the Certificate of Insurance must accompany each bid. The Prime Vendor's attention should be directed to other sections of the contract documents in the event additional insurance is required based on the scope of work.

#### 9. INSPECTIONS

All equipment shall be subject to final inspection. If, in any way, an item fails to meet the terms of the contract, it may be rejected, or liquidated damages charges made. The decision of the City will be final, and any rejected items or material will have to be replaced at the expense of the bidder.

#### 10. INTENT OF SPECIFICATIONS

It shall be the bidder's responsibility to furnish the equipment specifically indicated in these specifications and such other as may be required.

#### 11. REGULATIONS AND EXCEPTIONS

Any and all exceptions which are taken to the specifications shall be noted on the Proposal form. The listing of an exception may be grounds for rejection. All equipment must meet all applicable federal or state regulations.

The application of lead paint as defined in Title 16, Chapter 30M of State Code and Chapter 7 of City Code as part of this contract is prohibited. The vendor will be subject to fines as outlined in State and City Code if it is determined that lead paint was applied in violation of State and City code.

Safety Data Sheet information for all paints applied to internal or external structures shall be provided to the City for review and approval prior to application. The vendor will be required to remove and remediate any lead paint to the satisfaction of the City, at no cost to the City. Prior to commencing removal and remediation efforts, the vendor shall provide a written remedial action plan which includes health safety protection requirements for both employees and the public for review and approval by the City and/or DNREC/DHSS.

Any and all sample results that are generated as a result of improper application of lead paint shall be provided to the City within 5 working days of being received by the vendor. The vendor will also be required to replace all paint removed with non-lead paint to the satisfaction of the City, and at no cost to the City. Failure to adequately remove, remediate, and replace lead paint applied in violation of State and City Code as outlined herein will be considered a breach of contract.

#### 12. STANDARDS AND MANUFACTURER'S WARRANTY

No material, supplies, or equipment to be installed as part of the work shall be purchased subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale or other agreement by which any interest therein or in any part thereof is retained by the seller or supplier. The vendor shall warrant good title to all material, supplies, and equipment installed or incorporated in the work and upon completion of all work, shall deliver the same together by him to the City free from any claims, liens, or charges. Neither the vendor nor any person, firm, or corporation furnishing any material or labor covered by this contract shall have any right to a lien upon any improvement or appurtenance thereon. Nothing contained in this paragraph, however, shall defeat or impair the right of persons furnishing materials or labor to recover under any bond given by the vendor for their protection or any right under any law permitting such persons to look to funds due the vendor in the hands of the City. The provisions of this paragraph shall be inserted in all subcontracts and material contracts and notice of its provisions shall be given to all persons furnishing materials for the work when no formal contract is entered into for such materials.

All equipment will be unused in all component parts and will be the latest current production including all accessories. The specifications will be construed as the minimum required. When the manufacturer's standards exceed these, the standard units will be furnished. All material will be free of defects. Manufacturer's standard warranties shall apply.

#### 13. WORKMANSHIP

Workmanship shall conform to the best current manufacturing practice followed for equipment of the type. Component parts and units will be manufactured to definite standard dimensions, with proper fits and clearances.

#### **14. GUARANTEE**

The vendor hereby guarantees all the work for a period of three (3) years after the date of completion and final acceptance thereof by the City as follows:

Against all faulty or imperfect materials and against all imperfect, careless, and/or unskilled workmanship.

The vendor agrees to replace with proper workmanship and materials, and to re-execute, correct, or repair without cost to the City, any work which may be found to be improper or imperfect and/or which fails to perform as specified.

The guarantee obligations assumed by the vendor under these contract documents shall not be held or taken to be in any way impaired because of the specifications, indication, or approval by or on behalf of the City of any articles, materials, means, combination of things use or to be used in the construction, performance, and competition of the work or any part thereof.

No use or acceptance by the city of the work or any part thereof, nor any failure to use the same nor any repairs, adjustments, replacements, or corrections made by the City due to the vendor's failure to comply with any of his obligations under the contract documents, shall impair in any way the guarantee obligations assumed by the vendor under these contract documents.

#### 15. ADVERTISEMENT

Any bidder submitting a bid will not use the name of the City in any advertisement without first obtaining the written consent of the City Manager or their designee. All such requests should be submitted in writing to contracts@newark.de.us.

#### 16. EEO AND LICENSING

The bidder shall possess all business and other licenses required by the State of Delaware and the City of Newark. The bidder must also be a fair and equal opportunity employer.

## 17. PREFERENCE FOR DELAWARE LABOR AND OTHER GRADING CRITERIA

According to Delaware State Law, any person, company, or corporation who violates the requirements of Delaware Code Title 29, Section 6962 regarding preference for Delaware Labor shall pay a penalty to the State Secretary of Finance equal to the amount of compensation paid to any person in violation of this Section. This regulation is waived if it conflicts with Federal requirements.

Due to the City's preference for a local vendor to oversee the procurement and installation of equipment, and quickly handle staff inquires, repair requests, or other issues, the location of the bidding vendor as well as subcontractors will be taken into strong consideration.

Other bid variables the City shall consider when reviewing bids are:

- Reputation/references
- Facility space for safe storage of vehicles and equipment
- Upfit warranty and/or guarantee
- Turnaround time
- Pricing

#### 18. NON-COLLUSION

The vendor shall not, either directly or indirectly, enter into any agreement, participate in any collusion, or otherwise take any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the contract.

#### 19. INQUIRIES AND ADDENDA

Any inquiries regarding the bidding process shall be directed to the Purchasing Division at <a href="mailto:contracts@newark.de.us">contracts@newark.de.us</a> by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, July 21, 2023. Any changes to the contract documents shall be made only by numbered addendum(a) issued not later than four (4) days prior to the date set for bid opening.

Prospective bidders shall bear the entire responsibility for being sure they have received all such addenda. No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of the City, either before or after the execution of this contract, shall affect or modify any of the terms or conditions outlined herein.

#### 20. DAMAGES FOR LATE DELIVERY

The dates for delivery of the equipment are important and may influence the award of the contract. Submitted delivery dates shall be calculated from the date of notification of award. Liquidated damages of \$125.00 per calendar day may be assessed by the City, at its discretion, for every day that delivery is extended beyond the submitted delivery date/turnaround time.

#### 21. PAYMENT

Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days from receipt of a completed vehicle, subject to final inspection and acceptance of the items by the City.

#### 22. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

This agreement may be terminated by the City upon thirty (30) days written notice if the vendor fails to perform satisfactorily in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract. In the event this agreement is terminated, the vendor shall be paid for services satisfactorily rendered up to the termination date.

#### 23. INDEMNIFICATION & OWNERSHIP OF MATERIAL

The vendor shall solely be responsible and liable for the accuracy and completeness of all work performed and shall agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City of Newark, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits and proceedings arising out of, based upon, or caused by negligent acts, omissions or errors of or the infringement of any copyright of patent, by the vendor, its officers, agents, employees or subcontractors, in the performance of the contracted agreement.

All documents prepared and submitted pursuant to this RFP or contract shall be the property of the City upon submittal and will be subject to staff and public review and discussion in association with our public bidding and formal proposal process. Any information or documents deemed proprietary shall be so marked at time of submittal and limited to detail where the disclosure of contents could be prejudicial to competing offerors during the process of negotiation, and any commercial or financial information of a privileged or confidential nature.

#### 24. FORCE MAJEURE OCCURANCE

Upon the occurrence of a force majeure event, the City of Newark shall immediately notify the awarded vendor. In this instance, the City shall be excused from any further financial or contractual obligations for as long as such circumstances prevail. As used in this document, a "force majeure occurrence" means acts of God; acts of the public enemy; acts of the State and any other governmental entity in its sovereign or contractual capacity; fires; floods; epidemics or pandemics; quarantine restrictions; strikes or other labor disputes; freight embargoes; unusually severe weather; or other unusual event outside of the reasonable control of a party hereto that prevents a party to this Agreement from performing its contractual obligations.

#### 25. BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS

No contract will be awarded to any bidder who in the judgment of the City is not a responsible or fit bidder, or is not prepared with all the necessary experience, capital, organization, and equipment to conduct and complete the work for which the bidder proposes on the proposal form.

#### 26. SHIPPING & FREIGHT QUOTED

The prices quoted are those for which the material will be furnished F.O.B. Destination and include all charges that may be imposed during the period of the contract.

Unless otherwise specified and agreed upon by both parties in writing, all material shall be designated F.O.B. Destination and have freight included in quotations.

#### 27. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this contract (general, special, technical, or other) shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable. If a court finds that any provision of this contract is invalid or unenforceable, but that by limiting such provision it would become valid and enforceable, then such provision shall be deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited.

## CITY OF NEWARK Delaware

#### CONTRACT NO. 23-11

#### POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

#### **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**

#### 1. SCOPE OF WORK

This contract is for the procurement of new equipment, removal of old equipment, and installation of new or previously used equipment in Newark Police Department vehicles. The vendor shall provide all tools, consumables, and labor to supplement the Newark Police Department's need for Vehicle Equipment and Upfitting, as described herein. The contract will require the vendor to cooperate with Newark Police Department representatives to ensure the department receives the most current state-of-the-art material and/or services. All components shall be furnished by the vendor unless otherwise noted. The awarded vendor shall supply all incidental consumables including but not limited to incidental components, electrical connections, nuts, bolts and fasteners necessary for the installations.

It should be noted that there is no maximum number of upfits or installations that will be outsourced to the awarded vendor per year. The awarded vendor will be given a minimum of fifteen (15) vehicles to procure equipment for and upfit, but additional procurement and upfitting services shall be completed on as-needed basis for the duration of the contract term at the prices noted in the "Proposal" section below.

The fifteen (15) minimum vehicles associated with this contract are all 2023 Dodge Durango Pursuit AWD. Specifically, twelve (12) of the vehicles will be fully marked per Appendix A, and three (3) will be Administrative per Appendix C. This is what the bid security should be based on (see Section 2 in "General Provisions").

#### 2. VEHICLES TO BE UPFIT

The Newark Police Department primarily operates and have the need to upfit the following:

- Chevrolet Tahoe PPV
- Chevrolet Silverado SSV
- Ford Interceptor SUV
- Dodge Ram SSV

#### Dodge Durango Pursuit AWD

In addition to the referenced police vehicles, the Newark Police Department shall retain the right to full or partial upfits of a variety of specialty vehicles, motorcycles, pickup trucks, SUVs, or sedans as described in any subsequent Purchase Order. The pricing for such upfitting of currently unknown vehicles shall be consistent with pricing outlined for the noted vehicles herein.

The bidding vendor shall provide standard pricing for the defined packages identified in appendices A through D and component pricing for individual services as requested. All pricing shall be all inclusive of wiring, fasteners, loom, fuses, clamps, bolts, nuts and any other consumables necessary to allow for complete operation of the component being installed. This pricing shall also be inclusive of any costs for procuring equipment and storing vehicles and equipment.

### 3. EQUIPMENT SPECIFICATIONS

## A. Marked Patrol Vehicles See appendix A

## B. Unmarked Patrol Vehicles See appendix B

## C. Admin Vehicles See appendix C

## D. K9 Vehicles

See appendix D

The Newark Police Department shall reserve the right to utilize or re-utilize remanufactured and/or used equipment at their discretion and with advance notice. If other than new equipment is used, the vendor shall test, but otherwise not be liable for equipment warranty except as it applies to the agreed-to installation. For example: the Newark Police Department may from time to time require the vendor to install used equipment (i.e., prisoner partitions, weapon mounts, console, etc. from vehicles being turned in and replaced by the new vehicle). If, in the opinion of the vendor, such remanufactured and/or used equipment is unsuitable for installation, the vendor shall notify the Newark Police Department accordingly.

Should a piece of equipment or component specified in appendices A through D not be available, experience a significant cost increase, or not able to be installed in a specific vehicle, the vendor will be permitted to substitute with a comparable piece of equipment or

component. All substitutions must be approved prior to installation by the Newark Police Department.

#### 4. PROPOSAL PRICING

The vendor's proposal shall be inclusive of service charges for procuring material, storing material, and upfitting services. The cost of material shall not be included in this price—the cost of equipment procured shall be invoiced to the City by the awarded vendor once procured. Pricing on equipment shall be confirmed with the Newark Police Department.

While the pricing provided through bidders' submissions should be inclusive of all specifications outlined, not every piece of equipment will be needed for each upfitting. Prior to the procurement of equipment for equipment, NPD shall provide the awarded vendor with the needed equipment for each upfit.

Total price should be indicated on the "Proposal" form below, while unit pricing should be added to the appendices at the end of this document. All forms should be submitted as part of the vendor's bid.

#### 5. GENERAL UPFIT REQUIREMENTS

The vendor shall have and maintain appropriate manufacturer certification to receive direct vehicle shipments. The vendor shall be required to identify said manufacturers they are eligible to receive vehicle shipments from, and if awarded, shall make every reasonable effort to maintain the same certifications through the contract period. Should any individual manufacturer certification lapse during the awarded contract period, the awarded vendor shall immediately notify the Newark Police Department and the City of Newark Chief Purchasing Officer. Any certifications required by equipment manufacturers for installation of equipment will be the responsibility of the vendor to obtain.

#### A. TURNAROUND TIME

The vendor shall identify an approximate but realistic turnaround time associated with completion of a partial or full upfit for each of the vehicle specifications identified in appendices A through D. The Newark Police Department shall review and verify the ability of the vendor to meet the timeline as represented in their proposal. The vendor shall confirm ability to meet the proposed upfit installation timeline or is further obligated to notify the Newark Police Department of any anticipated delays.

All anticipated completion dates are contingent on receiving all necessary equipment in

a timely and operational condition. Turnaround times should take into consideration the ordering of equipment, removal and installation of equipment, and quality assurance checks. After work has commenced, any deviation or variances need to be identified to the Newark Police Department within 72 hours. Should it be determined that a vendor is consistently missing the timelines, the vendor will be subject to corrective action which may impact contract extensions and/or rebid awards.

## B. RECEIPT AND SAFEGUARD OF EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES

The awarded vendor shall be required to receive, acknowledge, store, and safeguard vehicles and equipment to be upfitted. Vehicles shall be secured in an area protected by fences, security, and any other means necessary to protect the City of Newark's vehicle resources. On receipt, police vehicles and equipment shall be insured by the vendor against damage from vandalism, theft, accident and/or any other circumstance that may imperil or diminish City assets.

Vehicles delivered to a vendor's facility and/or subcontractor shall be the responsibility of the vendor on receipt, and until returned to the Newark Police Department. Responsibility shall extend and include retrieval to correct, repair and/or warranty a prior installation or repair.

Equipment to be used in vehicle upfitting (i.e. lightbars, sirens, electronics, etc.) shall be secured in a locked room, facility or similar, and shall be insured by the awarded vendor up to and until received back and acknowledged by the Newark Police Department or designated agent.

The Vendor shall inspect all shipments for damage or shortage in delivered quantities. If damage or shortage is noted, the Vendor must immediately contact the vehicle or equipment provider, note the condition of the received materials and request replacement or return necessary to affect the upfit installation requested. Any and all communications to vehicle and equipment manufacturers must copy the Newark Police Department. If the Vendor is unable to correct the received deficiency, the resolution must be immediately elevated to the Chief Purchasing Officer and/or Newark Police Department.

#### C. SPECIALIZED EQUIPMENT NEEDS

Partitions, consoles, gunlocks, Radar, etc., will be installed according to manufacturer's specifications in coordination with NPD. Some deviation may be required based on NPD's needs and as agreed to. Computer mount base and platform will be installed per manufacturers' instructions. Antennas will be installed as prescribed by NPD. In car

Camera System will be mounted as per manufacturer requirements. The specific location of components will be agreed upon by the agency and upfitter prior to full production. Modem/Router will be mounted as prescribed by Agency.

#### D. WIRING INSTALLATION

All wiring will follow the Vehicle manufacturer and the Equipment manufacturers' instructions. All wiring will be standardized and follow an agreed upon wiring schematic. NPD will be provided schematics as requested with Copyright rights for reproduction and use. Any item installed or wiring routed must be done in such a way to not interfere with any air bag deployment. All wiring connections must use any vehicle manufacturers wiring harnesses intended for upfitters. If any pass thru is already available and intended for an upfitter the pass thru will be used. Any other wiring pass thru in the fire wall and/or body must use grommets. All wiring must be color coded and uniform throughout all vehicles. Each wire run must be a continuous length (no splices). All connections must use a weatherproof (weatherpack type) connector that will allow the component it connects to, to be unplugged and removed without cutting any wires. Any wires that are connected with a butt connector will be the heat shrink type. No taps or scotch lock type connectors are allowed. Blunt cut ends not used will have a butt connector crimped on. All power connectors will originate from its' own power stud/connection and fused. Using a main power supply cable to a fused distribution buss is preferred. All grounds will be on a separate ground for that circuit.

Any harness/wires passing the outer shell of the vehicle will use a grommet and be sealed against water/air intrusion (Lightbar harness, etc). All power supply wires will be of adequate size to accommodate the maximum amperage draw plus 20%. Any exposed wire harnesses will be bundled in an appropriately sized loom and secured.

#### 6. INSPECTION

Completed vehicles will be inspected by a Newark Police Department representative upon delivery. If problems are found during the acceptance inspection, the vendor may correct any problems before leaving or they will be required to take the vehicle back for repair at no charge to the department. The vendor may agree to send their service truck and personnel to the City's site to make corrections.

Any damages (stripped fasteners, soiled interiors, burns, etc.) caused during installations must be repaired before delivery to the Newark Police Department. Broken Trim panels must be replaced with new. Any cables or wiring found after the inspection to have been damaged during installation (crushed, fasteners piercing insulation, cuts, cross threaded, stripped threads, etc.) will be the responsibility of the vendor to remove and replace at no cost to the

department.

An initial visit or schedule to correct noted deficiencies will be completed and/or scheduled with the Newark Police Department within 48 hours of notification of suspected problem.

If a problem potentially affects the safety or serviceability all repairs must be done immediately.

#### 7. INSTALLATION WARRANTY

Responding vendors shall clearly identify their warranty and any limitation on the warranty applied to materials and equipment installed on behalf of the Newark Police Department.

If the Newark Police Department contacts the vendor, the vendor shall be responsible for fixing, correcting, programming or otherwise re-installing defective equipment. Transportation to and from the repair agency or location shall be at the cost and the responsibility of the awarded vendor. Corrective repairs including but not limited to programming, repair, replacement and/or re-installation shall occur at vendor's expense.

The vendor shall reserve the right to attempt repair(s) on agency premises, but shall only be granted permission on request, and shall supply all equipment necessary to complete corrective actions.

If a repair is identified as not a fault of the vendor, including defective equipment, the vendor shall promptly notify the Newark Police Department, and request authorization prior to completing said repairs. The vendor shall retain the right to back charge the Newark Police Department the flat rate service charge at the rate identified in their awarded.

The awarded vendor shall take every reasonable precaution to avoid the invalidation of manufacturer warranty on products and components installed or serviced.

## 8. REMOVAL OF INSTALLED EQUIPMENT

The Newark Police Department may request the awarded vendor remove installed equipment from a previously upfit vehicle. Bidding vendors shall provide an hourly price or price per unit of equipment they are willing to uninstall or remove. If and when this requirement exists, the Newark Police Department will obtain pricing from the upfit vendor and the department has the right to accept or reject the pricing.

At a minimum, the following requirements MUST be met:

Appropriate care and protection of city-owned equipment and vehicles must remain of

critical importance.

- Lightbars must be removed with wiring harness intact. If any installation prevents the removal with the wiring harness still connected, the vendor must notify the Newark Police Department and obtain approval prior to removal.
- All power leads MUST be 'tied off' or otherwise secured from short circuiting the vehicle and/or the vehicle equipment electrical circuits. The Newark Police Department may specify full removal of power leads as deemed appropriate but shall notify the vendor prior to removal.
- Vendors are discouraged from cutting wires to remove remaining equipment, but may leave wires in place, bundled and tucked in and behind panels as appropriate.
- All removed panels must be replaced.

NOTE: Vendors that return previously operational vehicles in an inoperable or in a short circuit status will be required to resolve and correct at their own expense and at the timetable as identified by the Newark Police Department.

#### 9. CONTRACT PERIOD

The length of the contract will be for two (2) years commencing at the time of contract execution. By mutual consent of the contracted firm and the City, the contract may be renewed or extended for two (2) additional one (1) year periods, not to exceed a total of four (4) years. This option shall only be exercised if agreed to in writing by both parties and approved by the City Manager and/or City Council where applicable.

#### **10. BIDS**

All bids must be submitted on the "Proposal" form provided in this contract document by 2:00 p.m., prevailing time, on Tuesday, August 1, 2023.

#### 11. VENDOR REFERENCES AND WORK EXAMPLES

Upon request, the bidder shall supply to City staff examples of previous related work completed as well as previous customer references.

#### CITY OF NEWARK Delaware

#### CONTRACT NO. 23-11

## POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

#### **PROPOSAL**

TO:

The Mayor and City Council

Newark, Delaware

FROM:

Elite Emergency Lights LLC. BBA Elite Vehicle Solutions

The undersigned as a lawfully authorized agent for the below named Bidder has carefully examined the General Provisions, Special Provisions, Equipment Specifications, and Proposal to be known as Contract No. 23-11 and binds himself upon award to him by the Mayor and City Council of Newark, Delaware to execute in accordance with such award, a contract of which contract this Proposal and said General Provisions and any Addenda shall be a part, and to furnish the equipment as specified F.O.B. Newark, Delaware in a manner that is in complete accordance with said General Provisions, Special Provisions, and Technical Specifications, at the following named prices for the items:

#### SPECIFIC PACKAGES- INSTALLATION ONLY

Vehicle Type	Total Price	Turnaround Time (After Receiving Equipment)
Patrol Marked	19,252.32	45
Patrol Unmarked	18,670.27	45
Admin	8,499.81	30
K9	21,079.20	60

#### **ADDITIONAL SERVICES**

Service	Hourly Rate, as spec'd
Upfit removal - Rate shall be listed as Cost	\$95/hour
Per Hour	
Optional Installation/Repair outside of warranty - Rate shall be listed as Cost Per	\$95/hour
Hour	

This proposal shall be irrevocable for a period of 60 days after bids are opened.

We acknowledge receipt of Addendum(s) No(s)
Exceptions: Motorola Products and Cradlepoint
Elite Vehicle Solutions is not Direct Source with
Cradle Point or Motorola. It is beneficial for the City to purchase directly. We acknowledge that we are are not (circle one) registered on www.sam.gov. We also
acknowledge that there are no exceptions noted against us as outlined on www.sam.gov.
<u>www.sam.gov</u> unique entity identifier (UEI) # - if applicable: <u>HCA7JNHJK9T3</u>
DATE: 8723  BIDDER: Elite Emergency Lights LLC.  BY: DBn Elite Vehicle Solutions  Legally authorized representative.
PRINT NAME: Nate Herskovits
TITLE: President Owner
ADDRESS: 1000 Bennett Blud, Ste. 6
CITY, STATE, ZIP: Lakewood, NJ 08701
TELEPHONE: 732-534-2377

## CITY OF NEWARK Delaware

## CONTRACT NO. 23-11

## POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT UPFITTING

## NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT

Date: 8 7 2 3

City of Newark Newark, Delaware
This is to certify that the undersigned bidder Elite Emergency Lights LLC dBA.  Elitevehicle Solutions
has not, either directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or
otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with this proposal
submitted to the City of Newark on the $8^{th}$ day of $90st$ , $20a3$ .
submitted to the City of Newark on the day of Hogost, 20_&3.  Signature of Bidder:
By: Nate Herskovits, Owner
Its legally authorized representative
Sworn to and subscribed before me on this <u>8</u> day of <u>Aucost</u> 20 <u>23</u> .
My Commission expires Christopher R. HANSSON NOTARY PUBLIC OF NEW JERSEY Commission # 60140568

Notary Public

### **APPENDIX A: MARKED PATROL VEHICLES**

QTY	Product Description
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Light Bar
2	Soundoff Signal Mpower - Grille Lights
2	Soundoff Signal Mpower Fog Light
1	Soundoff Signal 100W Speaker Front Bumper
1	Soundoff Signal Speaker Bracket Front Bumper
2	Soundoff signal 15deg Wedges Running Boards
4	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mounts - R/B/W Running Board lights
2	Soundoff Signal Undercovers - R/B Headlamps
2	Twist Lock Collars Headlamps
2	Soundoff Signal RBW Intersectors Mirrors
1	Soundoff Signal Mirror Mounts
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount- Amber Inside D/S Front Door
2	ETTFFUT-16 - Taillamp Flasher
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - R/B Rear Bumper
3	Soundoff Signal 500 Siren - 100W - Remote - Push Button
3	Soundoff Siganl Remote Node
1	Soundoff Signal Remote Node Harness
1	Soundoff Siganl Link Module
1	Soundoff Signal Aftershock Siren - 100W Speaker
2	Soundoff Signal Aftershock Speakrer Bracket
1	Red/White Dome Lamp
1	Troy Products Console
1	Troy Products Siren Faceplate
2	Troy Products Radio Faceplate
1	Magnetic Mic
1	Troy Products Beverage Holder
1	Troy Products Storage Tray
1	Troy Products Arm Rest
1	Troy Products Computer Mount
1	Troy Products Full Prisoner Partition
2	Troy Products Window Guard
1	Troy Products Cargo Mount
1	Troy Products Electronics Tray
1	Troy Products Gass Struts
1	Troy Products Weapon Vault
1	SETINA Blac-Rac Weapon Mount
1	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount Radio
1	Cradlepoint R1900-5GB - Wireless router with Low Profile 9-in-1 5G Dome Blk -Ftd Ext Cbls
1	Delay timer
1	Brothers Pocket Jet (PJ763) printer
	Axon Fleet Mobile In-Car solution (Agency provided)

## **APPENDIX B: UNMARKED PATROL VEHICLES**

	AFT EIRDIN D. GRIVIANNED I TANGE TANGE
QTY	Product Description
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Grillle Lights
1	Soundoff Signal - P/S Fog Lamp
1	Soundoff Signal D/S Fog Lamp
1	Soundoff Signal 100W Speaker Front Bumper
1	Soundoff Signal Speaker Bracket Front Bumper
2	Soundoff Siganl Undercovers - R/B Headlamps
2	Twist Lock Collars Headlamps
2	Soundoff Signal RBW Intersectors Mirrors
2	Soundoff Signal Mirror Mounts
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Quick Mount- Amber Inside D/S Front Door
1	Soundoff Signal Dual Shrouds Front Windshield
4	Soundoff Signal NForce Interior Visor Lightbar
4	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - R/B Side Cargo & Front Dash
2	Soundoff Signal Single Shroud Side Cargo
1	nFORCE 6mod - RA/BA Rear Windshield
2	Soundoff Signal Single Shroud Side Cargo
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - Red Downward License Plate
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - Blue Downward License Plate
2	Soundoff Signal Mpower Quickmount - R/B Rear Bumper
1	Soundoff Signal 500 Siren - 100W - Remote - Push Button
2	Soundoff Signa Remote Node
2	Soundoff Signal Remote Node Harness
1	Soundoff Signal Link Module
1	Soundoff Signal Aftershock Siren - 100W Speaker
1	Aftershock Bracket
2	Red/White Dome Lamp
1	Troy Products Console
1	Troy Products Siren Faceplate
1	Troy Products Radio Faceplate
2	Magnetic Mic
1	Troy Products Beverage Holder
1	Troy Products Storage Tray
1	Troy Products Arm Rest Troy Products Computer Mount
1	Troy Products Computer Mount  Troy Products Full Prisoner Partition
1	Troy Products Window Guard
2	Troy Products Cargo Mount
1 1	Troy Products Electronics Tray
1	Troy Products Clectromes May
1	Troy Products Weapon Vault
1	SETINA Blac-Rac Weapon Mount
1	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount
	Cradlepoint R1900-5GB - Wireless router with Low Profile 9-in-1 5G Dome Blk -Ftd Ext Cbls
1	
1	Delay timer Brothers Pocket Jet (PJ763) printer
1 1	Axon Fleet Mobile In-Car solution (Agency provided)
T	Avoil Fleet Mobile III-out Soldton (ABelle) brossessi

## **APPENDIX C: ADMIN VEHICLES**

QTY	Description
2	Soundoff Signal mPower Grille Lights Red/Blue
2	Soundoff Signal Intersectors Under Mirror Lights Red/Blue
2	Soundoff Signal Under Mirror Mounts
2	Soundoff Signal mPower Rear Bumper Lights Red/Blue
1	Soundoff Signal Taillight Flasher
1	Soundoff Signal 100 Watt Speaker
1	Soundoff Signal Speaker Bracker
1	Soundoff Signal nErgy Remote Siren Controller
1	Troy Products Elevated Platfom
1	Troy Products Gun Box with Push Button Locks
1	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount
4	Mpower Stud Mount - R/B/W Front Windshield
1	nFORCE 6mod - RA/BA Rear Windshield
2	Dual Shrouds Front Windshield

## **APPENDIX C: K9 VEHICLES**

QTY	PRODUCT DESCRIPTION
2	Soundoff Signal mPower Grille Lights R/B
2	Soundoff Signal mPower Rear Bumper R/B
1	Soundoff Signal nForce Visor Bar R/B/W
1	Soundoff Signal nForce Rear Bar RA/BA
2	Soundoff Signal Intersector Mirror Lights R/B
2	Soundoff Signal Mirror Brackets
1	Soundoff Signal Headlight Flasher
1	Soundoff Signal Taillight Flasher
4	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mounts - R/B/W Running Board lights
1	Soundoff Signal nErgy 400 Remote Sirent
1	Soundoff Signal 100 Watt Speaker
1	Gamber Johnson Console
1	Dual Cup Holders, Armrest, 3 Acc and 2 USB
1	Laptop Docking Station, Delay Timer
1	American Aluminum E-Z Rider
1	Ace K-9 Hot-n-Pop
1	Ace K-9 Fan Kit
1	Truck Vualt All Weather Two Drawer for RAMBOX
1	Tri-Folding Tonneau Cover with Ram Box
1	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount
1	Cradlepoint LBR900LPE with Low Profile 5-in-1 MINO LTNE MMO WRLS 2.4/5GHZ & GPS Antenna
1	Delay timer
1	Brothers Pocket Jet (PJ773) printer
1	Axon Fleet Mobile In-Car solution (Agency provided)



#### CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE

CITY OF NEWARK

220 South Main Street · Newark, Delaware 19711 302.366.7000 · Fax 302.366.7035 · www.newarkde.gov

July 21, 2023

## CONTRACT NO. 23-11 POLICE VEHICLE EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT AND UPFITTING

#### ADDENDUM #1

#### **PROJECT INFORMATION**

A. Name:

Police Vehicle Equipment Procurement and Upfitting

B. Owner:

City of Newark, Delaware

C. Contract Number:

23-11

D. Date of Addendum:

July 21, 2023

E. Pre-Bid Meeting Date:

N/A

F. Questions Deadline:

5:00 p.m., Friday, July 21, 2023

G. Bid Submission Deadline:

2:00 p.m., Tuesday, August 8, 2023

#### **NOTICE TO BIDDERS**

- A. The Bidder shall acknowledge receipt of this addendum with their submitted proposal.
- B. The date for questions remains unchanged by this addendum.
- C. THE BID OPENING DATE IS NOW TUESDAY, AUGUST 8, 2023 TO AVOID CONFLICT WITH UPGRADES ONGOING AT THE CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER.
- D. This addendum shall serve to answer questions submitted via email to date.
- E. PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT THIS ADDENDUM ALSO UPDATES THE APPENDICES FOR THIS CONTRACT TO ADD SPACE FOR BIDDERS TO ADD UNIT PRICING; THESE APPENDICES SHOULD BE FILLED OUT BY BIDDERS OUTLINING THE COST PER PIECE OF EQUIPMENT PURCHASED.

### **RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS SUBMITTED VIA EMAIL**

Question 1:	I would like to know if I can substitute the following: Whelen for Sound Off Havis for Troy and Progard
Response 2:	We are fine with substitutions as long as the general function of the substituted piece of the equipment is the same. The bidder must verify substitutions with the agency before submitting alternates.

Question 2:	you need a rear and front If the	ducts Full Prisoner Partition. For a Full Prisoner Cage department is using factory seats. But in the Bid, it is any part numbers to correctly bid on the Upfit.
	CC-21DUR-0810	18" Console
	FP-SO500-R	SoundOff Signal 500 Siren Faceplate
	FP-MXTL2500	Motorola Faceplate
	AC-MAG-MIC	Magnetic Mic
	FP-USB-2DC	Charging Ports
	AC-INBHG	Dual Beverage Holder
	FP-SGTRAY	Open Storage Tray
Response 2:	AC-TB-ARMMNT-58	Armrest
	CM-SDMT-SL-LED	Side Post Computer Mount
	KIT-TP-SL6-21DR-SS	Front Partition Kit
	WG-DUR18-SET	Vertical Window Bar Set
	PS-21DUR-OS-FX	Plastic Seat w/ OS Belt System, FX Bracket, Grid
	CP-21DUR-CG-MNT	Cargo Mount
	AC-21DUR-TRAY	Electronics Tray
	CP-GB203212-LIP	Weapon Vault
Question 3:	Can you please tell me where well bid pricing? I only see the "inst total price per vehicle?	we should add shipping/handling and misc items to the callation only" section. Does this get added into the
Response 3:	Shipping/handling should be built into the equipment pricing in the appendices.  PLEASE SEE UPDATED APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS ADDENDUM. Appendices should be submitted as part of the proposal for this bid process.	
Question 4:	On this contract is it for equipment as well, if so is there a bid form for the equipment?	
Response 4:	Yes, please see updated appendices in this addendum, which provides space for unit pricing for equipment.	

	APPENDIX A: MARKED PATROL VEHICLES	
QTY	Product Description	UNIT PRICE
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Light Bar	2229.55
2	Soundoff Signal Mpower - Grille Lights	269.5
2	Soundoff Signal Mpower Fog Light	269,5
1	Soundoff Signal 100W Speaker Front Bumper	248 05
1	Soundoff Signal Speaker Bracket Front Bumper	75.35
2	Soundoff signal 15deg Wedges Running Boards	14.3
4	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mounts - R/B/W Running Board lights	598.4
2	Soundoff Signal Undercovers - R/B Headlamps	182,6
2	Twist Lock Collars Headlamps	6.6
2	Soundoff Signal RBW Intersectors Mirrors	409.2
1	Soundoff Signal Mirror Mounts	0
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount- Amber Inside D/S Front Door	82.5
2	ETTFFUT-16 - Taillamp Flasher	55
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - R/B Rear Bumper	149.6
3	Soundoff Signal 500 Siren - 100W - Remote - Push Button	B48.34
3	Soundoff Siganl Remote Node	499.4
1	Soundoff Signal Remote Node Harness	106 92
1	Soundoff Siganl Link Module	343,2
1	Soundoff Signal Aftershock Siren - 100W Speaker	535.7
2	Soundoff Signal Aftershock Speakrer Bracket	32.45
1	Red/White Dome Lamp	130.9
1	Troy Products Console	527.2
1	Troy Products Siren Faceplate	0
2	Troy Products Radio Faceplate	0
1	Magnetic Mic	92
1	Troy Products Beverage Holder	44.92
1	Troy Products Storage Tray	38.00
1	Troy Products Arm Rest	149.52
1	Troy Products Computer Mount	413.47
1	Troy Products Full Prisoner Partition	1024.92
2	Troy Products Window Guard	245.7
1	Troy Products Cargo Mount	567.91
 1	Troy Products Electronics Tray	223 93
1	Troy Products Gass Struts	0
1	Troy Products Weapon Vault	1284.66
1	SETINA Blac-Rac Weapon Mount	614.93
1	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount Radio	Exception - No Bid
<u>-</u> 1	Cradlepoint R1900-5GB - Wireless router with Low Profile 9-in-1 5G Dome Blk -Ftd Ext Cbls	Exception - No Bid
1	Delay timer	0 Exception - No Bid
1	Brothers Pocket Jet (PJ763) printer	763.10
	Axon Fleet Mobile In-Car solution (Agency provided)	0

QTY	Product Description	UNIT PRIC
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Grillle Lights	269,5
1	Soundoff Signal - P/S Fog Lamp	149.6
1	Soundoff Signal D/S Fog Lamp	149.6
1	Soundoff Signal 100W Speaker Front Bumper	248.05
1	Soundoff Signal Speaker Bracket Front Bumper	75,35
2	Soundoff Sigani Undercovers - R/B Headlamps	182.6
2	Twist Lock Collars Headlamps	6.6
2	Soundoff Signal RBW Intersectors Mirrors	409.2
2	Soundoff Signal Mirror Mounts	0
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Quick Mount- Amber Inside D/S Front Door	82,5
1	Soundoff Signal Dual Shrouds Front Windshield	38,5
4	Soundoff Signal NForce Interior Visor Lightbar	598.4
	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - R/B Side Cargo & Front Dash	539
4	Soundoff Signal Single Shroud Side Cargo	27.5
1	nFORCE 6mod - RA/BA Rear Windshield	799.8
	Soundoff Signal Single Shroud Side Cargo	27,5
2	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - Red Downward License Plate	114,95
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mount - Blue Downward License Plate	114.95
1	Soundoff Signal Mpower Quickmount - R/B Rear Bumper	269.5
2	Soundoff Signal 500 Siren - 100W - Remote - Push Button	848.34
1	Soundoff Signa Remote Node	499 4
2	Soundoff Signal Remote Node Harness	106,92
2	Soundoff Signal Link Module	343.2
1	Soundoff Signal Aftershock Siren - 100W Speaker	535.7
1	Aftershock Bracket	32,45
2	Red/White Dome Lamp	130.9
1	Troy Products Console	527.2
1	Troy Products Siren Faceplate	0
1	Troy Products Saler raceplate	0
		92
2	Magnetic Mic Troy Products Beverage Holder	44.92
11	Troy Products Storage Tray	38.00
1	Troy Products Arm Rest	149.52
1	Troy Products Computer Mount	413.47
1	Troy Products Full Prisoner Partition	1024.92
2	Troy Products Window Guard	245.7
	Troy Products Cargo Mount	567.91
1	Troy Products Electronics Tray	223.93
11	Troy Products Electronics Tray  Troy Products Gass Struts	0
1	Troy Products Gass Struts Troy Products Weapon Vault	1284.66
1	SETINA Blac-Rac Weapon Mount	614.93
1	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount	Exception - No
1	Cradlepoint R1900-5GB - Wireless router with Low Profile 9-in-1 5G Dome Blk -Ftd Ext Cbls	Exception - N
1	Delay timer	0
1		763.10
1	Brothers Pocket Jet (PJ763) printer Axon Fleet Mobile In-Car solution (Agency provided)	0

APPENDIX C: ADMIN VEHICLES				
QTY	Description	UNIT PRICE		
2	Soundoff Signal mPower Grille Lights Red/Blue	269,50		
2	Soundoff Signal Intersectors Under Mirror Lights Red/Blue	409.20		
2	Soundoff Signal Under Mirror Mounts	0		
2	Soundoff Signal mPower Rear Bumper Lights Red/Blue	269.50		
1	Soundoff Signal Taillight Flasher	56.10		
1	Soundoff Signal 100 Watt Speaker	248.05		
1	Soundoff Signal Speaker Bracker	0		
1	Soundoff Signal nErgy Remote Siren Controller	470.80		
1	Troy Products Elevated Platfom	567.91		
1	Troy Products Gun Box with Push Button Locks	1732.05		
1	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount	Exception - No Bid		
4	Mpower Stud Mount - R/B/W Front Windshield	598.40		
1	nFORCE 6mod - RA/BA Rear Windshield	799 80		
2	Dual Shrouds Front Windshield	38.50		

APPENDIX D: K9 VEHICLES				
QTY	PRODUCT DESCRIPTION	UNIT PRICE		
2	Soundoff Signal mPower Grille Lights R/B	269.50		
2	Soundoff Signal mPower Rear Bumper R/B	269 50		
1	Soundoff Signal nForce Visor Bar R/B/W	995,00		
1	Soundoff Signal nForce Rear Bar RA/BA	825.00		
2	Soundoff Signal Intersector Mirror Lights R/B	204.60		
2	Soundoff Signal Mirror Brackets	0		
1	Soundoff Signal Headlight Flasher	60.50		
1	Soundoff Signal Taillight Flasher	56,10		
4	Soundoff Signal Mpower Stud Mounts - R/B/W Running Board lights	598.40		
1	Soundoff Signal nErgy 400 Remote Sirent	657,80		
1	Soundoff Signal 100 Watt Speaker	248,05		
1	Gamber Johnson Console	496 80		
1	Dual Cup Holders, Armrest, 3 Acc and 2 USB	0		
1	Laptop Docking Station, Delay Timer	334.13		
1	American Aluminum E-Z Rider	2981		
1	Ace K-9 Hot-n-Pop	1686,37		
1	Ace K-9 Fan Kit	268 87		
1	Truck Vualt All Weather Two Drawer for RAMBOX	2125		
1	Tri-Folding Tonneau Cover with Ram Box	829.48		
1	Motorola APX6500 Remote Mount	Exception - No Bid		
1	Cradlepoint LBR900LPE with Low Profile 5-in-1 MINO LTNE MMO WRLS 2.4/5GHZ & GPS Antenna	Exception - No Bio		
1	Delay timer	0		
1	Brothers Pocket Jet (PJ773) printer	763.10		
1	Axon Fleet Mobile In-Car solution (Agency provided)	0		

**END OF ADDENDUM #1** 

### CERTIFICATE OF EMPLOYEE INFORMATION REPORT

RENEWAL

This is to certify that the contractor listed below has submitted an Employee Information Report pursuant to N.J.A.C. 17:27-1.1 et. seq. and the State Treasurer has approved said report. This approval will remain in effect for the period of 15-Feb-2023 to 15-Feb-2030

ELITE EMERGENCY LIGHTS, LLC

1000 BENNETT BLVD

LAKEWOOD

NJ 08701

Slap M. Muon

ELIZABETH MAHER MUOI

State Treasurer



## STATE OF NEW JERSEY BUSINESS REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE

Taxpayer Name:

ELITE EMERGENCY LIGHTS LIMITED LIABILITY

COMPANY

Trade Name:

ELITE VEHICLE SOLUTIONS

Address:

1000 BENNETT BLVD UNIT 6

LAKEWOOD, NJ 08701

Certificate Number:

1444223

Effective Date:

October 21, 2008

Date of Issuance:

May 29, 2018

For Office Use Only:

20180529130940306

**ELITEME-01** 

JBOTTANI

# ACORD

#### CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 8/3/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). CONTACT Jackie Bottani Winant Bomack Insurance Agency FAX (A/C, No): PHONE (A/C, No, Ext): (732) 918-7999 157 Broad Street, Suite 202 Red Bank, NJ 07701 ADDRESS: jbottani@winantbomack.com INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # INSURER A: AmGUARD Insurance Company 42390 INSURED INSURER B: **ELITE EMERGENCY LIGHTS** INSURER C: **DBA ELITE VEHICLE SOLUTIONS** 1000 BENNETT BLVD UNIT 6 INSURER D: LAKEWOOD, NJ 08701 INSURER E : INSURER F : CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: COVERAGES THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF (MM/DD/YYYY) POLICY EXP TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIMITS 1,000,000 X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE 100,000 DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence) CLAIMS-MADE | X | OCCUR K6GP400244 2/9/2023 2/9/2024 X 5,000 MED EXP (Any one person) 1,000,000 PERSONAL & ADV INJURY 3,000,000 GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 3,000,000 POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG 1,000,000 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident) AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY K6GP400244 2/9/2023 2/9/2024 ANY AUTO X BODILY INJURY (Per person) OWNED AUTOS ONLY SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident) X NON-OWNED AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY 2,000,000 X X UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE \$ 2/9/2023 K7GP400136 2/9/2024 CLAIMS-MADE EXCESS LIAB AGGREGATE 10,000 DED X RETENTIONS PER STATU**T**E ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory in NH) E.L. EACH ACCIDENT E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPE E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT GARGKPRS - DRCT PRIM 2/9/2024 1,000,000 K6GP400244 2/9/2023 500/2500 DED K6GP400244 2/9/2023 2/9/2024 1,000 DED 250,000 ON HOOK/CARGO DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) CERTIFICATE HOLDER IS LSITED AS ADDITIONAL INSURED WITH REGARDS TO AUTO & GENERAL LIABILITY CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. CITY OF NEWARK 220 SOUTH MAIN STREET **NEWARK, DE 19711** AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE Remute Robinst

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.



## CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 08/04/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). CONTACT NAME: Nancy Robertson (718) 256-9062 PHONE (A/C, No, Ext): E-MAIL ADDRESS: FAX (A/C, No): (718) 232-3300 Fairmont Ins. Brokers, Ltd. nrobertson@fairmontins.com 1600 60th Street NAIC # INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE 13900 **ARI Insurance Company** NY 11204 INSURER A: Brooklyn INSURED INSURER B : Elite Emergency Lights LLC DBA Elite Vehicles Solutions INSURER C 1000 Bennet Blvd #6 INSURER D : INSURER E : NJ 08701 INSURER F: Lakewood **REVISION NUMBER:** MSTR 22-23 CERTIFICATE NUMBER: COVERAGES THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS POLICY EFF ADDL SUBR POLICY NUMBER TYPE OF INSURANCE EACH OCCURRENCE DAMAGE TO RENTED COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR S MED EXP (Any one person) PERSONAL & ADV INJURY GENERAL AGGREGATE S GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG POLICY 5 OTHER COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 5 AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY BODILY INJURY (Per person) \$ ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per accident) \$ OWNED AUTOS ONLY HIRED AUTOS ONLY SCHEDULED PROPERTY DAMAGE AUTOS \$ NON-OWNED AUTOS ONLY S EACH OCCURRENCE UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR AGGREGATE EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE RETENTION 5 DED X PER STATUTE WORKERS COMPENSATION 1,000,000 AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY FI EACH ACCIDENT ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory in NH) 09/18/2022 09/18/2023 PWC1071299 1,000,000 Υ N/A \$ E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000 E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) CANCELLATION CERTIFICATE HOLDER SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. Evidence of Insurance AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE Marche Spirkhendy

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

		а		

HOLD DOÇUMENT UP TO THE LIGHT TO VIEW TRUE WATERMAN	OFFICIA	AL CHECK	HOLD DOCUMENT UP TO THE L	D885680-6
Buffalo, NY 14240		,5	-	10-4/220
ELITE EMERGENCY LIGHTS LLC	es cas	DATE	08/08/2023	Steathy Feature Details on Back.
PAY TO THE ORDER OF SITY OF NEW	WARK		\$25,652	.72
***TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND SIX HU	INDRED FIFTY TWO	and 72/100***	USDollars Authorized signatures regulirei	SECT MANUALTS SAR OOD OO & OVER
#3372 ~ Seagull Square			James &	AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

#400885680# #022000046#17004019948263#

		8 <sub>10</sub> 11100